
www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org 
109 Beckwith Road, PO Box 955, Loyalton CA 96118 – 530-993-1660 – schoolinfo@spjusd.org 
 

Sierra County Board of Education 
Regular Meeting – 6:00pm 

& 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Governing Board 
Closed Session – 5:00pm 

Regular Meeting – Immediately follows the 6:00pm meeting of the 
Sierra County Board of Education 

 

Tuesday / April 14, 2020 
PLEASE NOTE: 

The public will have access to the Regular Meetings through Zoom Teleconferencing. For those 
individuals who wish to make a Public Comment, please do so through the Zoom meeting chat 
feature. A moderator for the meeting will read your comment for the record. 

 
Time: Apr 14, 2020 06:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/163303133?pwd=d0V5cEJmVUNpR0RnLzFROXBXWms1dz09 
 
Meeting ID: 163 303 133 
Password: 04142020 
One tap mobile 
+16699009128,,163303133#,,#,04142020# US (San Jose) 
+13462487799,,163303133#,,#,04142020# US (Houston) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
        +1 253 215 8782 US 
        +1 301 715 8592 US 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
Meeting ID: 163 303 133 
Password: 04142020 
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/afFdhSZDb 

 
**Please email schoolinfo@spjusd.org to submit Public Comment for any Closed 
Session items by 4:30pm on 4/14/20 

https://zoom.us/j/163303133?pwd=d0V5cEJmVUNpR0RnLzFROXBXWms1dz09
https://zoom.us/u/afFdhSZDb
mailto:schoolinfo@spjusd.org








Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2019/20Balances through March

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 288,697.00 309,589.00 91,133.10 214,786.82 3,669.08 Teachers Salaries

1115 250.00 470.00 70.00 400.00 Certificated Extra Duty

1120 12,325.00 11,268.00 6,510.00 4,758.00 Certificated Substitutes

1200 30,561.00 30,561.00 7,640.19 22,920.57 .24 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 260,757.00 193,207.00 46,326.34 160,948.59 14,067.93-Certificated Supervisor Admini

1310 10,000.00 10,000.00 1,000.00 9,000.00 Teacher in Charge

Total for Object 1000 602,590.00 555,095.00 145,099.63 406,235.98 3,759.39 

2100 196,300.00 160,723.00 34,937.50 91,736.90 34,048.60 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2115 1,000.00 1,000.00 566.51 433.49 Classified Extra Duty

2120 7,755.00 7,570.00 2,775.51 4,794.49 Classified Substitutes

2200 28,846.00 37,342.00 3,583.09 11,275.21 22,483.70 Classified Support Salaries

2215 1,000.00 1,000.00 591.89 408.11 Classified Support Extra Duty

2220 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Classified Substitute Salaries

2300 104,378.00 114,719.00 25,869.00 78,252.00 10,598.00 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 127,065.00 128,933.00 32,058.99 93,787.27 3,086.74 Clerical Technical Office Staf

2420 250.00 250.00 250.00 Clerical Substiture

2900 9,000.00 15,960.00 8,339.00 7,621.00 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 476,594.00 468,497.00 96,448.58 287,324.29 84,724.13 

3101 122,401.00 162,923.00 24,812.04 65,863.15 72,247.81 STRS Certificated Positions

3102 803.00 23,823.00 246.84 1,046.21 22,529.95 STRS Classified Positions

3201 244.54 244.54-PERS Certificated Positions

3202 89,597.00 85,561.00 18,657.39 53,508.22 13,395.39 PERS Classified Positions

3301 932.00 7.00 107.88 100.88-OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 27,727.00 28,263.00 5,817.34 17,231.18 5,214.48 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 8,344.00 7,704.00 2,015.76 5,645.29 42.95 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 6,814.00 6,682.00 1,381.50 4,123.42 1,177.08 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 108,577.00 86,135.00 27,216.21 69,997.97 11,079.18-Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 84,444.00 107,536.00 29,422.44 79,236.82 1,123.26-Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 300.00 276.00 72.60 204.44 1.04-SUI Certificated

3502 239.00 234.00 48.25 141.12 44.63 SUI Classified

3601 19,262.00 20,479.00 4,931.34 13,541.81 2,005.85 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 15,378.00 16,420.00 3,379.49 9,895.82 3,144.69 Workers' Compensation Classifi

3902 13,250.00 6,624.00 6,626.00 Golden Handshake-Class

Total for Object 3000 484,818.00 559,293.00 118,001.20 327,411.87 113,879.93 

4100 460.00 2,273.00 2,273.00 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2020, Period = 9, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Apr  3 2020 12:36PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2215
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2220
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2420
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3902
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2019/20Balances through March

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

4200 1,000.00 1,000.00 Library and Reference Material

4300 42,512.00 62,399.00 3,355.27 17,807.31 41,236.42 Materials and Supplies

4320 500.00 676.00 36.21 626.70 13.09 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,030.09 30.09-Office Supplies

4350 6,000.00 5,500.00 1,160.09 2,702.24 1,637.67 Vehicle Upkeep

4399 277.00 277.00 Mat & Sup Undesignated Bal

4400 17,849.00 19,186.00 7,091.29 12,094.71 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 68,321.00 92,311.00 4,551.57 29,257.63 58,501.80 

5100 43,000.00 43,000.00 43,000.00 Subagreements for Services

5200 47,304.00 35,583.00 3,548.31 12,467.77 19,566.92 Travel and Conference

5300 20,438.00 16,338.00 427.47 14,645.07 1,265.46 Dues and Membership

5400 11,000.00 11,000.00 10,297.92 702.08 Insurance

5500 11,500.00 14,500.00 3,316.59 7,970.80 3,212.61 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 3,100.00 1,850.00 245.87 1,538.33 65.80 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 30,500.00 18,000.00 9,450.00 550.00 8,000.00 Legal Services

5803 500.00 .00 Legal Publications

5805 842.00 242.00 168.00 74.00 Personnel Expense

5806 1,000.00 .00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 296.41 1,203.59 .00 Other Services & Fees

5810 443,765.00 499,377.00 123,404.19 269,130.64 106,842.17 Contracted Services

5899 496.36 647.10 1,143.46-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 10,500.00 10,500.00 2,319.24 7,835.73 345.03 Communications

Total for Object 5000 624,949.00 651,890.00 143,672.44 326,286.95 181,930.61 

6200 26,516.00 1,000.00 25,516.00 .00 Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 20,000.00 97,098.00 97,098.00 Equipment

6500 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 Equipment Replacement

Total for Object 6000 35,000.00 138,614.00 1,000.00 25,516.00 112,098.00 

7110 5,501.00 25,000.00 19,958.25 5,041.75 County Tuition Inter Dist Agre

7141 24,428.00 24,428.00 24,428.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 29,929.00 49,428.00 .00 19,958.25 29,469.75 

584,363.61 2,322,201.00 2,515,128.00 508,773.42 1,421,990.97 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 11 - ADULT ED   

1100 35,000.00 1,805.51 33,194.49 Teachers Salaries

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2020, Period = 9, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Apr  3 2020 12:36PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4399
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7110
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=1100


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2019/20Balances through March

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 11 - ADULT ED    (continued)

1300 89,732.00 89,732.00 22,433.01 68,811.96 1,512.97-Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 89,732.00 124,732.00 22,433.01 70,617.47 31,681.52 

2100 5,684.00 6,000.00 75.56 5,924.44 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2200 17,052.00 787.75 16,264.25 Classified Support Salaries

Total for Object 2000 5,684.00 23,052.00 .00 863.31 22,188.69 

3101 15,344.00 26,529.00 3,836.04 11,887.86 10,805.10 STRS Certificated Positions

3202 1,179.00 4,556.00 14.90 4,541.10 PERS Classified Positions

3301 68.06 68.06-OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 352.00 1,429.00 48.84 1,380.16 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 1,301.00 1,809.00 325.29 1,023.99 459.72 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 82.00 334.00 12.52 321.48 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 12,767.00 12,767.00 3,191.70 9,575.10 .20 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3501 45.00 63.00 11.22 35.32 16.46 SUI Certificated

3502 3.00 12.00 .44 11.56 SUI Classified

3601 3,004.00 4,176.00 795.75 2,443.05 937.20 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 190.00 772.00 30.47 741.53 Workers' Compensation Classifi

Total for Object 3000 34,267.00 52,447.00 8,160.00 25,140.55 19,146.45 

4100 10,000.00 7,500.00 3,142.99 4,357.01 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4300 5,000.00 4,700.00 450.64 3,652.02 597.34 Materials and Supplies

4320 5,000.00 1,449.09 3,550.91 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 300.00 300.00 Office Supplies

4350 1,184.22 768.05 1,952.27-Vehicle Upkeep

4400 2,132.00 16,000.00 6,072.63 16,080.87 6,153.50-Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 17,132.00 33,500.00 7,707.49 25,093.02 699.49 

5200 15,000.00 10,000.00 1,232.73 4,909.37 3,857.90 Travel and Conference

5203 1,000.00 5,000.00 1,619.94 3,380.06 MILEAGE

5300 250.00 1,000.00 1,870.00 870.00-Dues and Membership

5500 2,500.00 13,000.00 1,749.13 750.87 10,500.00 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,500.00 526.75 1,704.25 269.00 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 1,000.00 1,000.00 Legal Services

5805 32.00 32.00-Personnel Expense

5810 40,000.00 35,925.00 23,683.79 12,241.21 Contracted Services

5900 181.11 1,018.89 1,200.00-Communications

Total for Object 5000 58,750.00 68,425.00 3,689.72 35,589.11 29,146.17 

6200 100,000.00 85,718.61 14,281.39 Building and Improvement of Bu

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2020, Period = 9, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 3 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Apr  3 2020 12:36PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5203
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=6200


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2019/20Balances through March

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 11 - ADULT ED    (continued)

6400 22,500.00 59,322.00 659.25 36,791.30 21,871.45 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 22,500.00 159,322.00 659.25 122,509.91 36,152.84 

7619 935.00 1,870.00 853.83 1,016.17 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

140,031.33 229,000.00 463,348.00 42,649.47 280,667.20 Total for Fund 11 and Expense accounts

Fund 16 - FOREST RES   

7211 330,000.00 6,253.72 323,746.28 Transfers of Pass-through Rev

7619 52,121.00 58,250.00 1,103.60 57,146.40 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

380,892.68 52,121.00 388,250.00 .00 7,357.32 Total for Fund 16, Expense accounts and Object 7000

1,105,287.62 2,603,322.00 3,366,726.00 551,422.89 1,710,015.49 Total for Org 001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2020, Period = 9, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 4 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Apr  3 2020 12:36PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=7619
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7211
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=116896&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7619


1 
SCOE Minutes 

March 10, 2020 

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

March 10, 2020 
Sierra County Office of Education, Room 4, 109 Beckwith Rd, Loyalton CA 96118 

Videoconferenced to Downieville School, 130 School St, Downieville CA 95936 
6:00pm Regular Session 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
President PATTY HALL called the meeting to order at 6:00pm. 

B. ROLL CALL 
PRESENT: Patty Hall, President 
  Nicole Stannard, Vice President 

Allen Wright, Clerk 
  Mike Moore, Member 
  Jenny Gant, Member 

ABSENT: None 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MOORE/WRIGHT 
5/0 

D. FLAG SALUTE 

E. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
1. Superintendent’s Report 

a. Curriculum Coordinator 
BERARDI: Will not be hiring for this position at this time. Will revisit and 
reconsider next school year. 

2. Business Report 
a. Account Object Summary-Balance from 07/01/2019 to 02/29/2020 

3. Staff Reports 
a. SELPA—BETHKE: Attended meeting last week with Special Education 

Directors throughout the state – big discussion items: Universal Preschool and 
how that looks for Special Education Students; Budgets and Local Plans. 
Updating Special Education Handbook. Workability Coordinator is attending 
a Workability Conference this month to learn more about ways to serve our 
students with transitioning to work after school. 

b. ADULT ED—JACKSON: First graduation planned for Friday, March 20th 6-
7pm, Room 4 at SCOE in Loyalton. 

4. Board Member Reports 
None  

5. Public Comment 
a. Current location –  

Lindsay McIntosh—Launched Musica Sierra in February, a local performing 
arts organization dedicated to music education in schools, community events 
and enrichment events. Recap of Launch Week in February—11 interactive 
performances at 6 school sites. Working with Sierra Schools Foundation to 
enrich the program as much as possible. 

b. Videoconference location – none 



2 
SCOE Minutes 

March 10, 2020 

F. CONSENT CALENDAR 
1. Approval of minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held February 11, 2020 
2. Approval of Board Report-Checks Dated 02/01/2020 through 02/29/2020 

WRIGHT/GANT 
5/0 

G. ACTION ITEMS 
1. Old Business 

a. Approval of 2018-19 Sierra County Office of Education Special Education 
School Accountability Report Card 
MOORE/WRIGHT 
5/0 

2. New Business  
a. Adoption of 2019-2020 Second Interim Actuals and Criteria & Standards 

Report as of January 31, 2020 
WRIGHT/MOORE 
5/0 

b. Approval of 2020-2021 School Calendars 
GANT/WRIGHT 
5/0 

c. Approval of Safe Schools Plan, annual review and revisions** 
(this plan can be found in its entirety on our website, 
http://www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org/upload/?show=/SCHOOL_SAFETY_PLAN/) 
GANT/MOORE 
5/0 

PUBLIC HEARING – Collective Bargaining Disclosure Statement 
d. Public Hearing opened at 6:20pm to receive public comment regarding 

Collective Bargaining (Item e). Closed at 6:21pm with no public comment. 
e. Presentation of the Classified Employees’ Initial Proposal for the 2019-20 

Fiscal Year 

f. 2020 Ballot for California School Boards Association (CSBA) Delegate 
Assembly Election 
GANT motioned to vote for David Patterson on the “County Delegate Region 
4” ballot. Second by MOORE. 
5/0 

BOARD POLICIES, ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS, EXHIBITS, BOARD BYLAWS 

g. 2121—Superintendent’s Contract 
1. Board Policy, revisions 

MOORE/WRIGHT 
5/0 

h. 1112—Media Relations 
1. Board Policy, revisions 

GANT/STANNARD 
5/0 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
SCOE Minutes 

March 10, 2020 

i. 6142.2—World Language Instruction 
1. Board Policy, NEW 
2. Administrative Regulation, NEW 

GANT motioned to approve Board Policy with minor edit to paragraph 1 to 
read “In order to broaden students’ intercultural understanding…” and 
approve Administrative Regulation as presented. Second by MOORE. 
5/0 

j. 6145.6—International Exchange 
1. Board Policy, revisions 
2. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

MOORE/WRIGHT 
5/0 

k. 6146.12—Graduation Requirements/Standards of Proficiency – Adult 
Education 

1. Board Policy, NEW 
WRIGHT/GANT 
5/0 

l. 3260—Fees and Charges 
1. Exhibit, revisions 

WRIGHT/STANNARD 
5/0 

H. ADVANCED PLANNING 
1. Next Regular Board Meetings will be held on April 14, 2020 at Downieville School, 130 

School St, Downieville CA 95936. Closed Session will be held, as needed, at 5:00pm and 
the Regular Board Meetings at 6:00pm. 

2. Suggested 
a. Updates on Coronavirus 

I. ADJOURN at 6:33pm 
MOORE/STANNARD 
5/0 

 
 
 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Allen Wright, Clerk     James Berardi, Superintendent 
       Secretary to the County Board of Education 



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 03/01/2020 through 03/31/2020

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00015585 03/10/2020 CIT 01-5900 PHONE SYSTEM/MAINTENANCE 773.08 

00015586 03/10/2020 HEIDI BETHKE 01-4350 MILEAGE 112.70 

00015587 03/10/2020 ANNA GOODWIN 01-5810 NURSE SERVICES 2,065.00 

00015588 03/10/2020 JANIS HARDEMAN 01-5810 NURSE SERVICES 70.00 

00015589 03/10/2020 JAQUEZ CUSTOM CRAFT, INC 11-6200 BOBCAT LABOR 100.00 

00015590 03/10/2020 JANE V. LEE, M.A., LMFT 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 2,006.40 

00015591 03/10/2020 LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 318.57 

11-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 166.72 485.29 

00015592 03/10/2020 MARY LOWE 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 3,720.20 

00015593 03/10/2020 LESLIE MARSDEN, MOT, OTR/L 01-5810 OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY SERVICES 1,882.50 

00015594 03/10/2020 MARLENE MONGOLO 01-4350 MILEAGE 56.35 

00015595 03/10/2020 MIKE MOORE 01-5200 PER DIEM 28.75 

00015596 03/10/2020 ADRIANA PETRO 01-4300 WORKABILITY SUPPLIES 66.95 

00015597 03/10/2020 PLUMAS-SIERRA TELECOMMUNICATIONS 11-5600 BROADBAND SERVICE 109.00 

00015598 03/10/2020 PRESENCELEARNING, INC. 01-5810 PRESENCE LEARNING 6,509.38 

00015599 03/10/2020 RAY MORGAN COMPANY 01-5600 COPIER MAINT. 105.78 

00015600 03/10/2020 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01-5808 BANK SERVICE FEES 30.00 

00015601 03/10/2020 SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-4300 SHOP SUPPLIES 204.23 

00015602 03/10/2020 NICOLE STANNARD 01-5200 PER DIEM 67.87 

00015603 03/10/2020 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INSURANCE GROUP 01-9535 MAR 20 HEALTH INSURANCE 2,159.00 

76-9576 MAR 20 HEALTH INSURANCE 17,318.90 19,477.90 

00015604 03/10/2020 VOYAGER 01-4350 FUEL EXPENSE 152.35 

01-5899 FUEL EXPENSE 122.29 

11-5200 FUEL EXPENSE 200.94 475.58 

00015605 03/10/2020 ALLEN WRIGHT 01-5200 PER DIEM 28.76 

00015606 03/24/2020 AT&T 11-5900 PHONE 77.59 

00015607 03/24/2020 HEIDI BETHKE 01-5200 PER DIEM/HOTEL 233.73 

00015608 03/24/2020 STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 11-5805 EMPLOYMENT FINGERPRINTING 32.00 

00015609 03/24/2020 K12 MANAGEMENT DBA FUELED 11-5810 USER BLOCK 9,540.00 

00015610 03/24/2020 JENNIFER GANT 01-5200 PER DIEM 124.20 

00015611 03/24/2020 WENDY JACKSON 11-5200 PER DIEM 36.00 

00015612 03/24/2020 JOSTENS 11-4300 DIPLOMAS 155.37 

00015613 03/24/2020 MARLENE MONGOLO 01-4350 MILEAGE 56.35 

00015614 03/24/2020 NORTHEASTERN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 76-9571 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 9,158.75 

00015615 03/24/2020 OFFICE DEPOT 01-4300 OFFICE SUPPLIES 206.31 

00015616 03/24/2020 QUILL CORPORATION 01-4300 TONER 611.26 

00015617 03/24/2020 RAY MORGAN COMPANY 01-5600 COPIER MAINT. 25.00 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Apr  3 2020 12:40PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 03/01/2020 through 03/31/2020

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00015617 03/24/2020 RAY MORGAN COMPANY 11-5600 COPIER/MAINTENANCE 659.25 

11-6400 COPIER/MAINTENANCE 4,789.05 5,473.30 

00015618 03/24/2020 SAN JOAQUIN SELPA ATTN: PATTI FARHAT 01-5810 SP. ED INFO SYSTEM 3,000.00 

00015619 03/24/2020 SCHOOL SERV OF CALIFORNIA INC. 01-5200 WORKSHOP REGISTRATIONS 68.75 

01-5899 WORKSHOP REGISTRATIONS 206.25 275.00 

00015620 03/24/2020 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01-5808 BANK SERVICE FEES 98.48 

00015621 03/24/2020 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 11-6200 DSA REVIEW FEE 500.00 

00015622 03/24/2020 TAYLOR CONCRETE 11-6200 CORRECTIVE WORK 3,500.00 

00015623 03/24/2020 U.S. BANK 01-4300 INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES 242.91 

PAPER 106.48 

SHOP SUPPLIES 127.60 

TABLE EPOXY 197.95 

01-5200 SUPT. TRAVEL EXPENSES 856.18 

01-5810 FEDEX SHIPPING 22.44 

01-5899 SUPT. TRAVEL EXPENSES 318.56 

11-4300 NITRILE GLOVES 273.30 

11-4320 MAINT SUPPLIES 229.45 2,374.87 

00015624 03/24/2020 ALLEN WRIGHT 01-5200 PER DIEM 21.57 

Total Number of Checks 40 73,850.50 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 30 27,004.18 01

ADULT EDUCATION 13 20,368.67 11

Payroll Clearing 2 26,477.65 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 40 73,850.50 

.00 

73,850.50 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Apr  3 2020 12:40PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education









Page 1 of 2 
 

CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET – April 14, 2020 
 
 

Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education 
should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly. 

 
 
BP/AR 0420.4 - Charter School Authorization 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to  reflect NEW LAWS (AB 1505 and 1595) which extend the timeline for holding a public 
hearing to determine the level of support for a charter petition, extend the timeline for making a final decision 
to grant or deny the petition, define receipt of the petition for the purpose of determining the beginning of 
this time period, and require publishing staff recommendations 15 days prior to the hearing at which the final 
decision will be made. As amended, criteria for reviewing the petition require consideration of the interests 
of the community in which the school is proposing to locate and prohibit the approval of a new charter school 
offering nonclassroom-based instruction until January 1, 2022. Regulation reflects NEW LAWS (AB 1505 
and AB 1595) which revise the required components of a petition to delete a requirement to include annual 
goals that apply to the nature of the program operated, add a requirement that the petition describe the means 
by which the charter school will achieve a balance of special education students and English learners that is 
reflective of the general population within the district, and require that a petition for a charter school operated 
by or as a nonprofit public benefit corporation include the names and qualifications of the governing body. 
Regulation also reflects NEW LAW (AB 982) which requires the petition to include requirements for 
providing homework assignments, upon request, to students who have been suspended for two or more days. 
Regulation also reflects NEW LAW (AB 1507) which limits the ability of a charter school to establish a 
resource center, meeting space, or other satellite facility used for nonclassroom-based independent study 
outside district boundaries. 

 
 
BP/E 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight 
(BP/E revised *NEW*) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAWS (AB 1505 and AB 1595) which require a charter school to request a 
material revision to its charter whenever it proposes to expand operations at one or more grade levels, and 
AB 1505 which revises criteria for the provision of technical assistance to charter schools beginning with the 
2020-21 school year. Exhibit updated to add new requirements for charter schools pursuant to NEW LAWS, 
including requirements to refrain from discouraging a student from enrolling for any reason (SB 75), hold a 
public hearing when adopting the local control and accountability plan (SB 75), provide assistive technology 
devices to a student at home or a student who transfers to another school (AB 605), pay a student's tuition 
and conduct on-site visits if the charter school has a master contract with a nonpublic, nonsectarian school 
(AB 1172), phase in a requirement for teachers to hold the certificate or permit required for their certificated 
assignment (AB 1505), provide parent/guardian notices in English and in the primary language when 15 
percent or more of the students speak a language other than English (SB 75), provide students with a meal of 
their choice regardless of unpaid meal fees (SB 265), adopt policy on suicide prevention applicable to grades 
K-6 (AB 1767), print the national domestic abuse hotline number on student identification cards (SB 316), 
post specified information on bullying and harassment prevention (AB 34), include the charter school's sexual 
harassment policy in student orientations and notify students of the policy by posting a poster (AB 543), 
neither expel a student in grades K-12 nor suspend a student in grades K-8 for disrupting school activities or 
willfully defying the authority of school personnel (SB 419), provide a student who is suspended for two or 
more days with the homework assigned during the period of suspension (AB 982), and update and reissue a 
former student's records to include the student's updated name or gender (AB 711). Exhibit also reflects 
current law requiring charter schools to accept and provide full or partial credit for coursework completed by 
a foster youth, homeless student, former juvenile court school student, child of a military family, migrant 
student, or immigrant student participating in a newcomer program at another school. 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

BP 0420.42 - Charter School Renewal 
(BP revised *NEW*) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1505) which revises the criteria for granting or denying charter 
renewals, provides that renewal of a high-performing school may be granted for up to seven years, and 
provides that a low-performing charter school shall not be granted a renewal unless it adopts a written plan 
with meaningful steps to address the underlying cause(s) of low performance and there is clear and 
convincing evidence of either measurable increases in academic achievement or strong postsecondary 
outcomes, as defined.  Policy also reflects NEW LAWS (AB 1505 and AB 1595) which extend the timeline 
for holding a public hearing on the renewal, extend the timeline for making a final decision to grant or deny 
the renewal, define receipt of the petition for the purpose of determining the beginning of this time period, 
and require publishing staff recommendations 15 days prior to the hearing at which the final decision will be 
made. Section on "School Closure" added to clarify that if the charter school is not renewed and ceases 
operation, the closure procedures specified in the charter will be implemented. 

 
 
BP 0420.43 - Charter School Revocation 
(BP revised *NEW*) 

Policy updated to move up the material regarding immediate revocation of a charter school in the event of a 
severe and imminent threat to the health or safety of students and to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1505) which 
provides that increases in student achievement for all numerically significant student subgroups should be a 
factor, but not necessarily the most important factor, in determining whether to revoke a charter. Section on 
"School Closure" added to clarify that if the charter school is revoked and ceases operation, the closure 
procedures specified in the charter will be implemented. 

 
 
BP 3471 - Parcel Taxes 
(BP added) **NEW** 

New policy addresses the major requirements of levying, with voter approval, a parcel tax on real property 
which may be used by the district for any purpose specified in the ballot statement. Policy includes, but is 
not limited to, the requirement for the board to hold a public hearing; board approval of a resolution for the 
adoption of a parcel tax; the prohibition against using district funds, services, supplies, or equipment to 
support the parcel tax; and persons who may be exempted by the board from paying the parcel tax. 
 
 

BP/AR 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 265) which provides that students with unpaid meal fees must not 
be denied a reimbursable meal of their choice, eliminating the possibility that any student is required to 
receive an alternate meal. Policy also reflects a waiver granted by the U.S. Department of Agriculture 
extending the three-year Administrative Review cycle to a five-year cycle for school years 2017-18 through 
2021-22. Regulation updated to reorganize the section on "Unpaid and Delinquent Meal Charges" to 
emphasize the prohibition against directing any action toward a student to collect unpaid school meal fees 
and reflect requirements, as amended by SB 265, to treat students with unpaid meal fees the same as other 
students. 



1 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans 
 
BP 0420.4 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORIZATION 
 
Note:  The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. Education Code 47600-47616.7 
authorize the establishment of public charter schools, which are generally exempt from the Education Code unless 
otherwise specified in law. To establish a charter school within the district, petitioners must submit to the Governing 
Board for approval a petition which includes all components required by law as described in the accompanying 
administrative regulation. The following policy reflects the criteria and procedures required by Education Code 
47605, as amended by AB 1505 (Ch. 486, Statutes of 2019) and AB 1595 (Ch. 543, Statutes of 2019). 
 
Under certain circumstances, charter petitions may also be approved by other governmental entities. For example,  
Education Code 47605.5-47605.6 authorize petitioners to submit a petition directly to the County Board of Education 
when (1) the charter school will serve students for whom the county office of education would otherwise be 
responsible for providing direct education and related services or (2) the countywide program will provide 
educational services to a student population that cannot be served as well by a charter school operating in only one 
district in the county. Education Code 47605.8, which authorized petitioners to submit a petition directly to the State 
Board of Education (SBE) to approve a statewide benefit charter school, was repealed by AB 1505. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 47606, a district may petition the Superintendent of Public Instruction and SBE to 
convert all its schools to charter schools, provided that 50 percent of the district's teachers sign the petition, the 
petition contains all specified components, and arrangements are made for alternative attendance of students residing 
within the district who choose not to attend a charter school. 
 
For further information regarding the submission and review of charter school petitions, see CSBA's publication 
Charter Schools:  A Guide for Governance Teams. 

 
The Governing Board recognizes that charter schools may assist the district in offering diverse 
learning opportunities for students. In considering any petition to establish a charter school within 
the district, the Board shall give thoughtful consideration to the potential of the charter school to 
provide students with a high-quality education that enables them to achieve to their fullest 
potential. 
 
The district shall not require any district student to attend the charter school nor shall it require 
any district employee to work at the charter school.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Note:  Education Code 47605 allows for Board approval of a start-up charter school or the conversion of an existing 
public school into a charter school, provided that the school adopts and maintains a policy giving admission 
preference to students who reside within the former attendance area of that public school. The signature requirement 
differs for each type of charter school; see the accompanying administrative regulation. 

 



2 

One or more persons may submit a petition to the Board for a start-up charter school to be 
established within the district or for the conversion of an existing district school to a charter school.  
(Education Code 47605) 
 
Any petition for a start-up charter school or conversion charter school shall include all components 
and, signatures, and statements required by law and , as specified in the accompanying 
administrative regulation. The proposed charter shall be submittedattached to the Board. petition.  
(Education Code 47605) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall consult with legal counsel, as appropriate, regarding 
compliance of the charter petition with legal requirements. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may work with charter school petitioners prior to the formal 
submission of the petition in order to ensure compliance of the petition with legal requirements. 
As needed, the Superintendent or designee may also meet with the petitioners to establish workable 
plans for technical assistance or contracted services which the district may provide to the proposed 
charter school. 
 
Within 30 days ofThe Board shall not require any district student to attend the charter school nor 
shall it require any district employee to work at the charter school.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Timelines for Board Action 
 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 47605, as amended by AB 1505 and AB 1595, upon receiving a charter petition 
to establish a charter school, the Board shall is required to hold a public hearing within 60 days to determine 
the level of support for the petition and to hold a public hearing within 90 days to take final action on the petition.  
As amended, Education Code 47605 also requires the district to publish, at least 15 days prior to the public hearing 
at which the Board will grant or deny the petition, staff recommendations regarding the petition and, if applicable, 
the certification  from the County Superintendent of Schools regarding the potential fiscal impact of the charter 
school on the district. 
 
To provide adequate opportunity for public input and thoughtful consideration of the charter petition, it is 
recommended that the Board conduct two public hearings -- one hearing to determine the level of support for the 
petition and, following the publication of staff recommendations, a second hearing to grant or deny the petition.  
However, the law does not explicitly require two hearings, and it may be possible to hold one public hearing for both 
determining the level of support for the petition and granting or denying the petition, provided that staff 
recommendations are published 15 days prior to the hearing, the hearing is held within 60 days of receipt of the 
petition, and the petitioners have equal time and opportunity to present evidence and testimony. Legal counsel should 
be consulted as needed to ensure that all requirements are met. 

 
Within 60 days of receiving a charter petition, the Board shall hold a public hearing on the charter 
provisions, at which time the Board shall consider the level of support for the petition by teachers, 
other district employees of the district, and parents/guardians.  (Education Code 47605)A petition 
is deemed received on the day the petitioner submits a petition to the district office, along with a 
signed certification that the petitioner deems the petition to be complete.  (Education Code 47605) 



3 

 
The Board shall either grant or deny the petition at a public hearing held within 90 days of receiving 
the petition, or within 120 days with the consent of both the petitioner and the Board.  (Education 
Code 47605) 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
 
Within 60 days of receiving a petition, or within 90 days with mutual consent of the petitioners 
and the Board, the Board shall either approve or deny the request to establish the charter school.  
(Education Code 47605) 
 
At least 15 days before the public hearing at which the Board will grant or deny the charter, the 
district shall publish all staff recommendations regarding the petition, including any recommended 
findings and, if applicable, certification from the County Superintendent of Schools regarding the 
potential fiscal impact of the charter school on the district.  During the public hearing, the 
petitioners shall have equal time and opportunity to present evidence and testimony in response to 
the staff recommendations and findings.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Note:  The following paragraph is optional and may be revised to reflect district practice.  As amended by AB 1505 
and AB 1595, Education Code 47605 requires that, in the event that a petition is denied and the matter is appealed, 
the Board must provide a documentary record to the petitioner, including a transcript of the public hearing at which 
the Board denied the hearing. See section on "Appeals" below. Thus, it may be useful to have a transcription of the 
hearing(s) in the event that the petitioners later appeal the decision of the Board. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain accurate records, in relation to each charter petition, 
of documents submitted, the Board's proceedings, and the findings upon which the Board's 
decision is made. 
 
Approval of Petition 
 
Note:  Education Code 47605 requires the Board to give preference to charter petitions that demonstrate the capability 
to provide comprehensive learning experiences to students identified by the petitioner as academically low achieving 
based on the standards established by the California Department of Education (CDE) pursuant to Education Code 
54032, as that section read before July 19, 2006. Prior to its repeal on that date, Education Code 54032 required CDE 
to develop standards to identify students as academically low achieving for purposes of allocating Economic Impact 
Aid funds to school sites. However, the Economic Impact Aid program is no longer funded or administered by CDE. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 47605, as amended by AB 1505 and AB 1595, the Board must also consider the interests 
of the community in which the school is proposing to locate. 

 
A charter petition shall be granted only if the Board is satisfied that doing so is consistent with 
sound educational practice and the interests of the community in which the school is proposing to 
locate. In granting charters, the Board shall consider the academic needs of the students the charter 
school proposes to serve and shall give preference to petitions that demonstrate the capability to 
provide comprehensive learning experiences for students who are identified by the petitioner as 



4 

academically low-achieving, based on standards established by California Department of 
Education (CDE).  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 47604.1, as added by SB 126 (Ch. 3, Statutes of 2019), charter schools are 
subject to the Brown Act (Government Code 54950-54963), California Public Records Act (Government Code 
6250-6270), conflict of interest laws (Government Code 1090-1099), and the Political Reform Act (Government 
Code 81000-91014). 

 
Prior to authorizing any charter, the Board shall verify that the charter includes adequate processes 
and measures for monitoring and holding the school accountable for fulfilling the terms of its 
charter and complying with all applicable laws, including Education Code 47604.1.Such processes 
and measures shall include, but are not limited to, fiscal accountability systems, multiple measures 
for evaluating the educational program, inspection and observations of any part of the charter 
school, and regular reports to the Board. 
(cf. 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight) 
 
The approval or denial of a charter petition shall not be controlled by collective bargaining 
agreements nor subject to review or regulation by the Public Employment Relations Board.  
(Education Code 47611.5) 
 
Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice.  Although not required by law, 
CSBA's publication Charter Schools:  A Guide for Governance Teams recommends one or more memoranda of 
understanding (MOUs) to address matters that are related to the charter petition but are not included in the petition, 
and to establish expectations for which the charter school can be held accountable. CSBA's manual provides 
examples of issues pertaining to business operations, administrative and support services, special education, and 
student assessment that might be addressed in an MOU. 
 
A sample MOU between SBE and a state-approved charter school, available on the California Department of 
Education's web site, may be adapted for use by districts. 

 
Approval of Petition 
 
The Board shall approve the charter petition if doing so is consistent with sound educational 
practice. In granting charters, the Board shall give preference to petitions that demonstrate the 
capability to provide comprehensive learning experiences for students who are identified by the 
petitioner as academically low-achieving.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
The Board shall verify that any approved charter contains adequate processes and measures for 
holding the school accountable for complying with applicable law, including Education Code 
47604.1, and for fulfilling the terms of its charter. These shall include, but are not limited to, 
fiscal accountability systems, multiple measures for evaluating the educational program, 
including student outcomes aligned with state priorities as described in Education Code 52060, 
and regular reports to the Board. 
(cf. 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight) 
 



5 

The Board may approve one or more memoranda of understanding to clarify the financial and 
operational agreements between the district and the charter school. Any such memorandum of 
understanding shall be annually reviewed by the Board and charter school governing body and 
amended as necessary. 
 
The Board may initially grant a charter for a specified term not to exceed five years.  (Education 
Code 47607) 
(cf. 0420.42 - Charter School Renewal) 
(cf. 0420.43 - Charter School Revocation) 
 
ItWhen a petition is approved by the Board, it shall be the responsibility of the petitioners to 
provide written notice of the Board's approval and a copy of the charter to the County 
Superintendent of Schools, the California Department of EducationCDE, and the State Board of 
Education (SBE).  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Denial of Petition 
 
The Board shall summarily deny any charter petition that proposes to: 
 
1. Proposes to operateOperate a charter school as or by a for-profit corporation, a for-profit 

educational management organization, or a for-profit charter management organization  
(Education Code 47604) 

 
2. Authorizes the conversion ofConvert a private school to a charter school  (Education Code 

47602) 
 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 47605, the Board may approve a charter school serving students in a grade level 
not offered by the district only when the charter school will also serve all the grade levels offered by the district. 
Thus, an elementary district's board cannot approve a charter for a high school, but may approve a charter for a K-
12 school since the charter school will serve all grade levels served by the elementary school district. 

 
3. Proposes to serveServe students in a grade level that is not served by the district, unless the 

petition proposes to serve students in all the grade levels served by the district  (Education 
Code 47605) 

 
AnyNote:  Pursuant to Education Code 47612.7, as added by AB 1505, until January 1, 2022, the Board is prohibited 
from approving a petition for the establishment of a new charter school offering nonclassroom-based instruction. A 
charter school approved before October 1, 2019 which had started providing educational services as of that date may 
continue to offer nonclassroom-based instruction under the circumstances specified in Education Code 47612.7. 
 
4. Offer nonclassroom-based instruction  (Education Code 47612.7) 
 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 47605, a charter petition can be denied only if certain factual findings are made. 
5 CCR 11967.5.1 contains criteria for SBE's review of charter petitions, which may be useful to the district in 
determining how it might evaluate whether a petition meets the conditions specified below. 



6 

 
Regarding all other charter petition petitions, the Board shall be denieddeny a petition only if the 
Board makes written factual findings specific to the petition that one or more of the following 
conditions exist:  (Education Code 47605; 5 CCR 11967.5.1) 
 
1. The charter school presents an unsound educational program forthat has a likelihood of 

physical, educational, or psychological harm to, or which is not likely to provide an 
educational benefit for, the students to be enrolled in the charter school. 

 
2. The petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set forth 

in the petition. 
 
3. The petition does not contain the number of signatures required. 
 
4. The petition does not contain an affirmation of each of the conditionsa clear, unequivocal 

statement described in Education Code 47605(d).e), including that the charter school will 
be nonsectarian and that the school shall not charge tuition or discriminate against any 
student based on the characteristics specified in Education Code 220. 

 
5. The petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of the charter 

provisions in Education Code 47605(bc). 
 
6. The petition does not contain a declaration as to whether or not the charter school shall be 

deemed the exclusive public school employer of the school's employees for purposes of 
collective bargaining pursuant to Government Code 3540-3549.3. 

 
Note:  As amended by AB 1505 and AB 1595, Education Code 47605 expands the grounds for denial of a charter 
petition to include those specified in items #7-8 below. 

 
7. The charter school is demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire community 

in which the school is proposing to locate. Analysis of this finding shall include 
consideration of the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school. A written factual finding 
shall detail specific facts and circumstances regarding: 
 
a. The extent to which the proposed charter school would substantially undermine 

existing services, academic offerings, or programmatic offerings 
 
b. Whether the proposed charter school would duplicate a program currently offered 

within the district, when the existing program has sufficient capacity for the 
students proposed to be served within reasonable proximity to where the charter 
school intends to locate 

 



7 

8. The district is not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school. 
The district meets this criterion if it has a negative interim certification, or has a qualified 
interim certification and the County Superintendent certifies that approving the charter 
school would result in the district having a negative interim certification.  

 
The Board shall not deny a petition based on the actual or potential costs of serving students with 
disabilities, nor shall it deny a petition solely because the charter school might enroll students with 
disabilities who reside outside the special education local plan area in which the district 
participates.  (Education Code 47605.7, 47647) 
(cf. 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education) 
 
Appeals 
 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 47605, if the Board denies a charter petition, the petitioner may, within 30 days 
of the denial, submit the petition to the County Board. If the County Board denies a petition on appeal, the petitioner 
may, within 30 days of the denial, appeal to SBE. 

 
If the Board denies a petition, the petitioner may choose to submit the petition to the County Board 
of Education and, if then denied by the County Board, to SBE.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
At the request of the petitioner, the Board shall prepare the documentary record, including a 
transcript of the public hearing at which the Board denied the charter, no later than 10 business 
days after the petitioner makes the request.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Within 30 days of receipt of an appeal submitted to SBE, the Board may submit a written 
opposition to SBE detailing, with specific citations to the documentary record, how the Board did 
not abuse its discretion in denying the petition.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
If either the County Board or SBE remands the petition to the Board because the petition on appeal 
contains new or different material terms, the Board shall reconsider the petition and grant shall or 
deny the petition within 30 days.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200  Equal rights and opportunities in state educational institutions 
220  Nondiscrimination 
1240  Duties of County Superintendent 
17078.52-17078.66  Charter schools facility funding; state bond proceeds 
17280-17317  Field Act 
17365-17374  Field Act, fitness for occupancy 
32282  Comprehensive safety plan 
33126  School Accountability Report Card 
41365  Charter school revolving loan fund 
42131  Interim certification 
42238.51-42238.2  Funding for charter districts 



8 

44237  Criminal record summary 
44830.1  Certificated employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony 
45122.1  Classified employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony 
46201  Instructional minutes 
47600-47616.7  Charter Schools Act of 1992 
47640-47647  Special education funding for charter schools 
47650-47652  Funding of charter schools 
49011  Student fees 
51745-51749.6  Independent study 
52052  Accountability:  numerically significant student subgroups 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
56026  Special education 
56145-56146  Special education services in charter schools 
CORPORATIONS CODE 
5110-6910  Nonprofit public benefit corporations 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
1090-1099  Prohibitions applicable to specified officers 
3540-3549.3  Educational Employment Relations Act 
6250-6270  California Public Records Act 
54950-54963  Ralph M. Brown Act 
81000-91014  Political Reform Act of 1974 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
11700.1-11705  Independent study 
11960-11968.5.5  Charter schools 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
7223-7225  Charter schools 
COURT DECISIONS 
Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District, (2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 986 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
Opinion No. 11-201 (2018) 
89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006) 
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997) 
78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 297 (1995) 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Uncharted Waters:  Recommendations for Prioritizing Student Achievement and Effective Governance in 
California's Charter Schools, September 2018 
Charter Schools in Focus, Issue 1:  Managing the Petition Review Process, Governance Brief, November 
2016 
Charter Schools and Board Member Responsibilities, Education Insights Legal Update Webcast, March 
2016 
Charter Schools:  A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. February 2016 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Sample Copy of a Memorandum of Understanding 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Dear Colleague Letter:  Guidance Regarding the Oversight of Charter Schools Program and Regulatory 
Requirements, including the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, August 2016 
Charter Schools Program:  Title V, Part B of the ESEA, Nonregulatory Guidance, January 2014 
Guidance on the Voluntary Use of Race to Achieve Diversity and Avoid Racial Isolation in Elementary and 
Secondary Schools, December 2011 
WEB SITES 



9 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Charter Schools Association:  http://www.ccsa.org 
California Department of Education, Charter Schools:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/cs 
National Association of Charter School Authorizers:  http://www.qualitycharters.org 
U.S. Department of Education:  http://www.ed.gov 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007  
revised: June 11, 2019 
revised: April 14, 2020 



1 
**Revisions** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans 
 
AR 0420.4 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORIZATION 
 
Note:  The following administrative regulation is optional. 

 
Petition Signatures 
 
A petition for the establishment of a start-up charter school must be signed by either of the 
following:  (Education Code 47605) 
 
1. A number of parents/guardians equivalent to at least one-half of the number of students 

that the charter school estimates will enroll in the school for its first year of operation 
 
2. A number of teachers equivalent to at least one-half of the total number of teachers that the 

charter school estimates will be employed at the school during its first year of operation 
 
If the charterA petition calls forthat proposes to convert an existing public school to be converted 
to a charter school, the petition must be signed by at least 50 percent of the permanent status 
teachers currently employed at the school.  (Education Code 47605) 
(cf. 4116 - Probationary/Permanent Status) 
 
Any petition circulated to collect signatures shall include a prominent statement explaining that a 
parent/guardian's signature means that the parent/guardian is meaningfully interested in having a 
child attend the charter school, or, in the case of a teacher's signature, means that the teacher is 
meaningfully interested in teaching at the charter school. The proposed charter shall be attached 
to the petition.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Staff Advisory Committee 
 
Note:  The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice. CSBA's publication Charter Schools:  
A Guide for Governance Teams suggests that a petition review team is one method that a district may use to obtain 
input on proposed charters. Such a committee might include representatives of the district's human resources, fiscal 
services, risk management, student services, curriculum, special education, facilities, and other departments. 
 
Education Code 47605, as amended by AB 1505 (Ch. 486, Statutes of 2019) and AB 1595 (Ch. 543, Statutes of 
2019), requires the district to publish staff recommendations regarding the petition at least 15 days prior to the hearing 
at which the Governing Board will grant or deny the petition; see the section "Timelines for Board Action" in the 
accompanying Board policy. 



2 
**Revisions** 

 
The Superintendent or designee may establish a staff advisory committee to evaluate the 
completeness of a charter petition based on the requirements in Education Code 47605 and to 
identify any concerns that should be addressed by the petitioners. 
(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups) 
 
Components of Charter Petition 
 
All charter petitions shall comply with the applicable requirements of Education Code 47605, other 
state and federal laws, and district policies.  
 
Note:  CSBA's publication Charter Schools:  A Guide for Governance Teams recommends specific content that 
would constitute a reasonably comprehensive description of each component listed in items #1-16 below, as well as 
additional content that is not required but may be requested of the petitioners (e.g., school calendar, transportation 
arrangements, a sample of the curriculum and instructional materials). 

 
The charter petition shall include affirmations that the charter school will be nonsectarian in its 
programs, admission policies, employment practices, and operations; will not charge tuition; and 
will not discriminate against a student on the basis of characteristics listed in Education Code 220.  
The petition shall also contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of:  (Education Code 47605) 
 
1. The educational program of the proposed school, designed, among other things, to identify 

those whom the school is attempting to educate, what it means to be an "educated person" 
in the 21st century, and how learning best occurs. The goals identified in that program shall 
include the objective of enabling students to become self-motivated, competent, and 
lifelong learners. 

 
Note:  Education Code 47605 requires the charter petition to include annual goals for all students and for each 
numerically significant subgroup of students, and specific actions to achieve those goals as described in Education 
Code 52060.  Pursuant to Education Code 52052, numerically significant subgroups include ethnic subgroups, 
socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless 
students, when there are at least 30 students in the subgroup (or at least 15 foster youth or homeless students) in the 
school. 
 
Education Code 47605 requires that these annual goals be aligned with the eight state priorities related to (1) the 
degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed, students have sufficient access to 
standards-based instructional materials, and facilities are maintained in good repair; (2) implementation of and 
student access to state academic content and performance standards; (3) parent/guardian involvement and family 
engagement; (4) student achievement; (5) student engagement; (6) school climate; (7) student access to and 
enrollment in a broad course of study, including programs and services provided to benefit low-income students, 
English learners, and/or foster youth (i.e., "unduplicated students" for purposes of the local control funding formula); 
and (8) student outcomes in the specified course of study. See BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan. 

 
Note:  As amended by AB 1595, Education Code 47605 no longer requires that charter petitions include annual goals 
that apply to the nature of the program operated. 

 



3 
**Revisions** 

The petition shall include a description of the charter school's annual goals for all students 
and for each numerically significant subgroup of students identified pursuant to Education 
Code 52052, including ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, 
English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students. These 
goals shall be aligned with the state priorities listed in Education Code 52060 that apply to 
the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the charter school.. The 
petition also shall describe specific annual actions to achieve those goals. The petition may 
identify additional priorities established for the proposed school, goals aligned with those 
priorities, and specific annual actions to achieve those goals. 
(cf. 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 

 
If the proposed charter school will serve high school students, the petition shall describe 
the manner in which the school will inform parents/guardians about the transferability of 
courses to other public high schools and the eligibility of courses to meet college entrance 
requirements. Courses offered by the charter school that are accredited by the Western 
Association of Schools and Colleges may be considered transferable, and courses approved 
by the University of California or the California State University as creditable under the 
"a-g" admissions criteria may be considered to meet college entrance requirements. 

 
Note:  Education Code 47605 requires that the petition identify student outcomes that the charter school intends to 
use, including those that address increases in student achievement both schoolwide and for all groups of students 
served by the charter school. Education Code 47607 defines "all groups of students served by the charter school" to 
mean all numerically significant subgroups of students, as defined in Education Code 52052, served by the charter 
school. 

 
2. The measurable student outcomes identified for use by the charter school. Student 

outcomes means the extent to which all students of the school demonstrate that they have 
attained the skills, knowledge, and attitudes specified as goals in the school's educational 
program, including outcomes that address increases in student academic achievement both 
schoolwide and for each numerically significant subgroup of students served by the charter 
school. The student outcomes shall align with the state priorities identified in Education 
Code 52060 that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by 
the charter school. 

 
3. The method by which student progress in meeting the identified student outcomes is to be 

measured. To the extent practicable, the method for measuring student outcomes for state 
priorities shall be consistent with the way information is reported on a school accountability 
report card. 
(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card) 

 
4. The governance structure of the charter school, including, but not limited to, the process to 

be followed by the school to ensure parent/guardian involvement. 
 
5. The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the charter school. 



4 
**Revisions** 

 
6. The procedures that the charter school will follow to ensure the health and safety of 

students and staff, including the following requirements: 
 
a. Each charter school employee shall furnish the school with a criminal record 

summary as described in Education Code 44237. 
 
b. The charter school shall develop a school safety plan which includes the topics 

listed in Education Code 32282(a)(2)(A)-(H) and procedures for conducting 
tactical responses to criminal incidents.J). 

 
c. The charter school's safety plan shall be reviewed and updated by March 1 each 

year. 
 
Note:  As amended by AB 1505 and AB 1595, Education Code 47605 adds a requirement that the petition describe 
the means by which the charter school will achieve a balance of racial and ethnic students, special education students, 
and English learners, including redesignated fluent English proficient students. 

 
7. The means by which the charter school will achieve a balance of racial and ethnic balance 

among its students, special education students, and English learner students, including 
redesignated fluent English proficient students, that is reflective of the general population 
residing within the district's territorial jurisdiction. 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 47605, when the number of students who wish to attend the charter school exceeds 
the school's capacity, attendance must be determined by a public random drawing, with admission preference 
extending to students who currently attend the charter school and students who reside in the district. Education Code 
47605 provides that admission preferences may also include, but are not limited to, siblings of students admitted or 
attending the charter school and children of the school's teachers, staff, and founders identified in the initial charter. 
Education Code 47605 requires that the priority order for preference be determined in the charter petition as provided 
below. 

 
8. The charter school's student admission policy. The petition shall, in accordance with 

Education Code 47605(de), specify procedures for determining enrollment when the 
number of applicants exceeds the school's capacity, including requirements for the use of 
a public random drawing, admission preferences, and priority order of preferences as 
required by law and subject to Governing Board of Education approval. 

 
9. The manner in which annual, independent financial audits shall be conducted, which shall 

employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the manner in which audit 
exceptions and deficiencies shall be resolved to the Board's satisfaction. 

 
Note:  As added by AB 982 (Ch. 779, Statutes of 2019), Education Code 47606.2 requires that the suspension 
procedures included in the charter petition provide that (1) upon request of a student who has been suspended for 
two or more school days or the student's parent/guardian, the homework assigned during the period of suspension be 
given and (2) any such completed homework shall not count towards the student's overall grade in the class unless 
the assignments are graded before the end of the academic term. 



5 
**Revisions** 

 
10. The procedures by which students can be suspended or expelled for disciplinary reasons or 

otherwise involuntarily removed for any reason, including an explanation of how the 
charter school will comply with federal and state constitutional procedural and substantive 
due process requirements as specified in Education Code 47605(b).  and a statement that 
the suspension procedures will include requirements pertaining to the provision of 
homework assignments to suspended students as specified in Education Code 47606.2.  
 
Such procedures shall also include processes by which the charter school will notify the 
superintendent of a district, and request to by which the charter school may be notified by 
the superintendent of a district about, when a student whenor former student of the charter 
school is expelled or subject to any of the circumstances specified in Education Code 
47605(d) exist.e)(3). 

 
11. The manner by which staff members of the charter school will be covered by the State 

Teachers' Retirement System, the Public Employees' Retirement System, or federal social 
security. 

 
12. The public school attendance alternatives for students residing within the district who 

choose to not attend the charter school. 
 
13. A description of the rights of any district employee upon leaving district employment to 

work in the charter school and of any rights of return to the district after employment at the 
charter school. 

 
14. The procedures to be followed by the charter school and the Board to resolve disputes 

relating to charter provisions. 
 
Note:  Education Code 47605 requires charter petitions to contain the declaration specified in item #15 below 
regarding responsibilities for collective bargaining. If the charter school is not deemed the public school employer 
for purposes of collective bargaining under Government Code 3540-3549.3, the district where the charter school is 
located shall be deemed the public school employer for these purposes, pursuant to Education Code 47611.5.  
Education Code 47611.5 further provides that, if the charter does not specify that the charter school shall comply 
with laws and regulations governing tenure or a merit or civil service system, the scope of representation for that 
charter school shall also include discipline and dismissal of charter school employees. 

 
15. A declaration as to whether or not the charter school will be deemed the exclusive public 

school employer of the school's employees for purposes of collective bargaining under 
Government Code 3540-3549.3. 

 
Note:  Education Code 47605 and 5 CCR 11962 require the charter petition to include procedures to be used in the 
event that the charter school closes for any reason, as provided in item #16 below.  Duties of the district pertaining 
to charter school closures include notification requirements pursuant to Education Code 47604.32 and 5 CCR 
11962.1; see BP 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight. 

 



6 
**Revisions** 

16. Consistent with 5 CCR 11962, the procedures to be used if the charter school closes, 
including, but not limited to: 
 
a. Designation of a responsible entity to conduct closure-related activities 
 
b. Notification to parents/guardians, the Board, the county office of education, the 

special education local plan area in which the charter school participates, the 
retirement systems in which the school's employees participate, and the California 
Department of Education, providing at least the following information: 
 
(1) The effective date of the closure 
 
(2) The name(s) and contact information of the person(s) to whom reasonable 

inquiries may be made regarding the closure 
 
(3) The students' districts of residence 
 
(4) The manner in which parents/guardians may obtain copies of student 

records, including specific information on completed courses and credits 
that meet graduation requirements 

 
c. Provision of a list of students at each grade level, the classes they have completed, 

and their districts of residence to the responsible entity designated in accordance 
with item #16a above 

 
d. Transfer and maintenance of all student records, all state assessment results, and 

any special education records to the custody of the responsible entity designated in 
accordance with item #16a above, except for records and/or assessment results that 
the charter may require to be transferred to a different entity 

 
e. Transfer and maintenance of personnel records in accordance with applicable law 
 
f. Completion of an independent final audit within six months after the closure of the 

charter school that includes an accounting of all financial assets and liabilities 
pursuant to 5 CCR 11962 and an assessment of the disposition of any restricted 
funds received by or due to the school 

 
g. Disposal of any net assets remaining after all liabilities of the charter school have 

been paid or otherwise addressed pursuant to 5 CCR 11962 
 
h. Completion and filing of any annual reports required pursuant to Education Code 

47604.33 
 
i. Identification of funding for the activities identified in item #16a-h above 

 



7 
**Revisions** 

Note:  Education Code 47605 requires that petitioners provide to the Board the information listed in items #1-4 
below. As amended by AB 1505 and AB 1595, Education Code 47605 adds item #5 below as a requirement for any 
petition to operate a charter school by or as a nonprofit public benefit corporation. 
 
The Board may require additional information beyond what is included in items #1-5.  As outlined in CSBA's 
publication Charter Schools:  A Guide for Governance Teams, some districts request a school calendar, information 
regarding transportation arrangements, staff development plans, assurances that the school will provide appropriate 
services for English language learners and students with disabilities, or any other information that will assist the 
Board in understanding the proposal. Districts that wish to require additional information in the charter may list those 
items below. 

 
Charter school petitioners shall provide information to the Board regarding the proposed operation 
and potential effects of the school, including, but not limited to:  (Education Code 47605) 
 

Note:  Education Code 47605 requires that information on school facilities, listed in item #1 below, must specify 
where the school intends to locate. Unless otherwise exempted, the school must be located within the geographic 
boundaries of the chartering district; see section "Location of Charter School" below. 

 
1. The facilities to be used by the charter school, including where the school intends to locate 

(cf. 7160 - Charter School Facilities) 
 
2. The manner in which administrative services of the charter school are to be provided 
 
3. Potential civil liability effects, if any, upon the charter school and district 
 
4. Financial statements that include a proposed first-year operational budget, including start-

up costs and cash-flow and financial projections for the first three years of operation 
 
5. If the charter school is to be operated by or as a nonprofit public benefit corporation, the 

names and relevant qualifications of all persons whom the petitioner nominates to serve on 
the governing body of the charter school 

 
Location of Charter School 
 
Note:  Education Code 47605 and 47605.1 establish geographic and site requirements for charter schools. Pursuant 
to Education Code 47605, a charter school granted by either the County Board of Education or the State Board of 
Education following initial denial by the district must locate within the geographic boundaries of the district that 
denied the petition. 

 
Unless otherwise exempted by law, the charter petition shall identify a single charter school that 
will operate within the geographic boundaries of the district. A charter school may propose to 
operate at multiple sites within the district as long as each location is identified in the petition.  
(Education Code 47605, 47605.1) 
 
A charter school that is unable locate within the district's jurisdictional boundaries may establish 
one site outside district boundaries but within the county, provided that:  (, 47605) 



8 
**Revisions** 

 
1. The district is notified prior to approval,the petition. 
 
2. The County Superintendent of Schools and Superintendent of Public Instruction are 
notified before the charter school begins operations. 
 
3. The charter school has attempted to locate a single site or facility to house the entire 
program but such a facility or site is unavailable in the area in which the school chooses to locate, 
or the site is needed for temporary use during a construction or expansion project. 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 47605.1 as amended by AB 1507 (Ch. 487, Statutes of 2019) a resource center, 
meeting space, or other satellite facility used by a charter school for nonclassroom-based independent study must, 
with specified exceptions, be located within district boundaries. 

 
A charter school may establish in an adjacent countya resource center, meeting space, or other 
satellite facility within the jurisdiction of the school district where the charter school is physically 
located if both of the following conditions are met:  (Education Code 47605.1) 
 
1. The facility is used exclusively for the educational support of students who are enrolled in 

nonclassroom-based independent study of the charter school. 
 
2. The charter school provides its primary educational services in, and a majority of the 

students it serves are residents of, the county in which the school is authorized. 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007  
revised: June 11, 2019 
revised: April 14, 2020 



1 
**NEW** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans  
 
BP 0420.41 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL OVERSIGHT 
 

Note:  The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. The Governing Board is obligated 
to monitor the performance of any charter school it authorizes in order to ensure the school's compliance with legal 
requirements and progress toward meeting measurable outcomes specified in the charter. Information about the 
school's performance is necessary when determining whether to grant a renewal of the charter or whether a 
revocation of the charter is warranted; see BP 0420.42 - Charter School Renewal and BP 0420.43 - Charter School 
Revocation. In addition, pursuant to Education Code 47604, if the district complies with all oversight 
responsibilities required by law, it will not be liable for the debts or obligations of any charter school that operates 
as or is operated by a nonprofit public benefit corporation pursuant to Corporations Code 5110-6910. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 47605, if the State Board of Education (SBE) approves a petition upon appeal after 
the Board and County Board of Education have denied the petition, the SBE may, by mutual agreement, designate 
its supervisorial and oversight responsibilities to the Board or to any local educational agency in the county in 
which the charter school is located. 

 
The Governing Board recognizes its ongoing responsibility to oversee that any charter school 
authorized by the Board is successfully fulfilling the terms of its charter and is providing a high-
quality educational program for students enrolled in the charter school. 
(cf. 0420.4 - Charter School Authorization) 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall identify at least one staff member to serve as a contact person 
for each charter school authorized by the Board.  (Education Code 47604.32) 
 

Note:  Education Code 47604.32 requires the district to visit each charter school at least once every year. CSBA's 
publication Charter Schools: A Guide for Governance Teams recommends more frequent visits, perhaps two or 
three times during the school year, in order to monitor school operations more closely and develop relationships 
with the staff at the charter school. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall visit each charter school at least annually and may inspect or 
observe any part of a charter school at any time.  (Education Code 47604.32, 47607) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. Pursuant to Education Code 
47604, if a charter school operates as or is operated by a nonprofit public benefit corporation, the Board is entitled 
to a single representative on the board of directors of the nonprofit public benefit corporation.  CSBA's publication 
Charter Schools: A Guide for Governance Teams recommends that the district consult with legal counsel and 
consider any potential conflict of interest that may arise from having an individual Board member vote as a member 
of the charter board of directors on issues on which the Board will need to provide oversight. CSBA's guide 
suggests that an alternative approach may be for the district to designate its charter school contact, appointed 
pursuant to Education Code 47604.32, to attend meetings of the charter school board. 

 



2 

The Superintendent or designated charter school contact shall attend meetings of the charter school 
governing body whenever possible and shall periodically meet with a representative of the charter 
school. 
 
Waivers 
 

Note:  A charter school is not authorized to submit general waiver requests to SBE on its own behalf, unless an 
exception applies. Rather, a charter school may submit a waiver request through the district. A general waiver 
request form is available on the California Department of Education's (CDE) web site. 

 
If the charter school wishes to request a general waiver of any state law or regulation applicable to 
it, it shall request that the district submit a general waiver request to the State Board of Education 
(SBE) on its behalf.  Upon approval of the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall submit such 
a waiver request to the SBE on behalf of the charter school. 
(cf. 1431 - Waivers) 
 
Provision of District Services 
 

Note:  The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice.  CSBA's publication Charter 
Schools: A Guide for Governance Teams recommends one or more memoranda of understanding to clarify the 
financial and operational agreements between the district and the charter school, including any services that will 
be provided by the district; see BP 0420.4 - Charter School Authorization. 

 
The charter school may purchase administrative or other services from the district or any other 
source.  (Education Code 47613) 
 
Whenever the district agrees to provide administrative or support services to a charter school, the 
district and the charter school shall develop a memorandum of understanding which clarifies the 
financial and operational agreements between them. 
 
At the request of a charter school, the Superintendent or designee shall create and submit any 
reports required by the State Teachers' Retirement System or Public Employees' Retirement 
System on behalf of the charter school. The district may charge the charter school for the actual 
costs of the reporting services, but shall not require the charter school to purchase payroll 
processing services from the district as a condition for creating and submitting these reports.  
(Education Code 47611.3) 
 
Material Revisions to Charter 
 
Material revisions to a charter may only be made with Board approval.  Material revisions shall be 
governed by the same standards and criteria that apply to petitions for the authorization of charter 
schools as set forth in Education Code 47605 and shall include, but not be limited to, a reasonably 
comprehensive description of any new requirement for charter schools enacted into law after the 
charter was originally granted or last renewed.  (Education Code 47607) 
 



3 

Note:  As amended by AB 1505 (Ch. 486, Statutes of 2019) and AB 1595 (Ch. 543, Statutes of 2019), Education 
Code 47605 requires a charter school to request a material revision to its charter whenever it proposes to expand 
operations at one or more grade levels. 

 
If an approved charter school proposes to establish or move operations to one or more additional 
sites or grade levels, the charter school shall request a material revision to its charter and shall 
notify the Board of those additional locations or grade levels. The Board shall consider approval 
of the additional locations or grade levels at an open meeting.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
The Board shall have the authority to determine whether a proposed change in charter school 
operations constitutes a material revision of the approved charter. 
 
Monitoring Charter School Performance 
 

Note:  The district has a responsibility to oversee that the charter school complies with all applicable legal 
requirements. Violation of any law may subject the school to revocation pursuant to Education Code 47607. See 
the accompanying Exhibit for a list of legal requirements pertaining to the operation of charter schools. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall monitor each charter school that is authorized by the district 
to determine whether it complies with all legal requirements applicable to charter schools, 
including making all reports required of charter schools in accordance with Education Code 
47604.32. Any violations of law shall be reported to the Board. 
 

Note:  Education Code 47605 requires that measurable student outcomes for "all groups of students served by the 
charter school" be included in the school's charter petition and that these outcomes be aligned with the state 
priorities for the local control and accountability plan (LCAP) as stated in Education Code 52060; see AR 0420.4 
- Charter School Authorization. Pursuant to Education Code 47607, "all groups of students served by the charter 
school" means all numerically significant subgroups of students served by the charter school, as defined in 
Education Code 52052. Pursuant to Education Code 52052, numerically significant subgroups include ethnic 
subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, 
and homeless students, when the subgroup consists of at least 30 students (or 15 foster youth or homeless students). 
 
Education Code 47605 requires that the charter petition include methods for measuring the charter school's 
progress toward achieving student outcomes. Although the measures of the school's progress may vary, Education 
Code 47605 requires that charter schools conduct any statewide assessments applicable to other public schools. In 
addition, charter schools are included in the California School Dashboard, which reports the status of school 
performance on multiple state and local indicators and is intended to assist schools and districts in identifying 
strengths and areas in need of improvement in each priority area addressed by the LCAP. Charter schools that 
serve high-risk students may qualify for the state's Dashboard Alternative School Status (DASS) program, which 
uses modified methods of measurement for accountability indicators when appropriate. 

 
The Board shall monitor each charter school to determine whether it is achieving the measurable 
student outcomes set forth in the charter, both schoolwide and for each numerically significant 
student subgroup served by the school as defined in Education Code 52052. This determination 
shall be based on the measures specified in the approved charter and any applicable memorandum 
of understanding, and on the charter school's annual review and assessment of its progress toward 
the goals and actions identified in its local control and accountability plan (LCAP), as reported in 
the California School Dashboard. 
 



4 

The Board shall monitor the fiscal condition of the charter school based on any financial report or 
information obtained from the charter school, including, but not limited to, the charter school's 
preliminary budget, annual update of the charter school's LCAP, first and second interim financial 
reports, and final unaudited report for the full prior year.  (Education Code 47604.32, 47604.33, 
47606.5) 
 
Note:  Education Code 47613 authorizes the district to charge the charter school, within specified limits, for the 
costs of supervisorial oversight of the school. Education Code 47613 provides that the costs of supervisorial 
oversight include, but are not limited to, costs incurred for technical assistance or intervention pursuant to Education 
Code 47607.3; see the section "Technical Assistance/Intervention" below. CSBA's publication Charter Schools: A 
Guide for Governance Teams suggests that supervisorial oversight activities also might include site visits, reviews 
of performance data and financial reports, and legal auditing. 

 
The district may charge up to one percent of a charter school's revenue for the actual costs of 
supervisorial oversight of the school. However, if the charter school is able to obtain substantially 
rent-free facilities from the district, the district may charge up to three percent of the charter 
school's revenue for actual costs of supervisorial oversight or, if the facility is provided under 
Education Code 47614, the pro-rata share facilities costs calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 11969.7.  
If the district charges the pro-rata share, it may also charge one percent of the charter school's 
revenue in oversight fees.  If the district is given responsibility for supervisorial oversight of a 
charter school that was authorized by SBE on appeal, the district is not limited to these percentages 
and may charge for the actual costs of supervisorial oversight and for the administrative costs 
necessary to secure charter school funding.  (Education Code 47613) 
(cf. 7160 - Charter School Facilities) 
 
Technical Assistance/Intervention 
 

Note:  Education Code 47607.3, as amended by AB 1505, establishes criteria for the provision of technical 
assistance to charter schools beginning with the 2020-2021 school year, including, but not limited to, the option to 
request assistance from the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE). If, after providing 
technical assistance, the CCEE informs the Board that the charter school has failed or is unable to implement the 
CCEE's recommendations or continues to have persistent or acute inadequate performance, then the Board must 
consider revocation of the charter; see BP 0420.43 - Charter School Revocation. 

 
Whenever a charter school is identified for technical assistance based on the performance of one 
or more numerically significant student subgroups on SBE-established criteria,  the charter school 
shall receive technical assistance from the County Superintendent of Schools. Such technical 
assistance shall be focused on building the charter school's capacity to develop and implement 
actions and services responsive to student and community needs, including, but not limited to, any 
of the following:  (Education Code 45607.3) 
 
1. Assisting the charter school to identify its strengths and weaknesses in regard to the state 

priorities applicable to the charter school pursuant to Education Code 47605. This shall 
include working collaboratively with the charter school to review performance data on the 
state and local indicators included in the California School Dashboard and other relevant 



5 

local data and to identify effective, evidence-based programs or practices that address any 
areas of weakness. 

 
2. Working collaboratively with the charter school to secure assistance from an academic, 

programmatic, or fiscal expert or team of experts to identify and implement effective 
programs and practices that are designed to improve performance in any areas of weakness 
identified by the charter school. Another service provider, including, but not limited to, a 
school district, county office of education, or charter school, may be solicited to act as a 
partner to the charter school in need of technical assistance. 

 
3. Obtaining from the charter school timely documentation demonstrating that it has 

completed the activities described in items #1 and 2 or substantially similar activities, or 
has selected another service provider to work with the charter school to complete the 
activities described in items #1 and 2 or substantially similar activities, and ongoing 
communication with the Board to assess the charter school's progress in improving student 
outcomes. 

 
In addition, if, in three out of four consecutive school years, a charter school fails to improve 
outcomes for three or more numerically significant student subgroups, or for all of the student 
subgroups if the school has fewer than three subgroups, in regard to one or more state or school 
priorities identified in the charter, the district:  (Education Code 47607.3) 
 
1. Shall provide technical assistance to the charter school based on the California School 

Dashboard 
 
2. May request that the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI), with SBE approval, assign 

the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence to provide advice and assistance 
to the charter school pursuant to Education Code 52074 

 
Note:  Education Code 47607 requires the Board to consider specified criteria of academic performance when 
determining whether to deny a petition for charter renewal or to revoke a charter, with achievement of all student 
subgroups served by the charter school being the most important factor; see BP 0420.42 - Charter School Renewal 
and BP 0420.43 - Charter School Revocation.  In addition, Education Code 47607.3 requires the Board to consider 
revocation of a charter whenever it finds that the charter school has failed, or is unable, to implement the 
recommendations of the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence or continues to demonstrate 
persistent or acute inadequate performance. 

 
In accordance with law, the Board may deny a charter school's renewal petition or may revoke a 
charter based on the charter school's poor performance, especially with regard to inadequate 
academic achievement of all numerically significant subgroups of students served by the charter 
school. 
(cf. 0420.42 - Charter School Renewal) 
(cf. 0420.43 - Charter School Revocation) 
 
 



6 

Complaints 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 52075, charter schools are required to establish policies and procedures for 
addressing complaints of noncompliance with Education Code 47606.5 (annual update of school goals, actions, 
and related expenditures) or 47607.3 (technical assistance or intervention based on the school's failure to improve 
student outcomes).  See AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures for applicable procedures. 

 
Each charter school shall establish and maintain policies and procedures to enable any person to 
file a complaint, in accordance with the uniform complaint procedures as specified in 5 CCR 4600-
4670, alleging the school's noncompliance with Education Code 47606.5 or 47607.3.  (Education 
Code 52075) 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
A complainant who is not satisfied with the decision may appeal the decision to the SPI.  
(Education Code 52075) 
 
If the charter school finds merit in the complaint or the SPI finds merit in an appeal, a remedy shall 
be provided to all affected students and parents/guardians.  (Education Code 52075) 
 
School Closure 
 

Note:  The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice.  Pursuant to Education Code 
47605, procedures to be followed in the event a charter school ceases operation for any reason must be specified 
in the charter; see AR 0420.4 - Charter School Authorization. 5 CCR 11962 lists components that must be included 
in these procedures, including (1) designation of a responsible entity to conduct closure-related activities; (2) 
notifications to specified persons and entities; (3) provision of information about students' grade level, course 
completion, and district of residence; (4) transfer and maintenance of student  and personnel records; (5) 
completion of an independent final audit; and (6) disposal of any net assets remaining after all liabilities of the 
charter school have been paid or otherwise addressed. 
 
Depending on the terms of the charter, these duties may be performed by the charter school, the district, or another 
specified entity. However, Education Code 47604.32 specifies that it is the responsibility of the district to notify 
CDE when a charter school ceases operation for any reason. CDE's web site also recommends that, in addition to 
the notifications required by 5 CCR 11962, either the district or the charter school should announce the closure to 
any school districts that may be responsible for providing education services to the former students of the charter 
school. 
 
CDE's web site recommends that charter school closures occur at the end of a school year if it is feasible to maintain 
a legally compliant program until then. 

 
In the event that the Board revokes or denies renewal of a charter or the charter school ceases 
operation for any reason, the Superintendent or designee shall, when applicable in accordance with 
the charter and/or a memorandum of understanding, provide assistance to facilitate the transfer of 
the charter school's former students and to finalize financial reporting and close-out. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide notification to the California Department of 
Education, within 10 calendar days of the Board's action, if renewal of the charter is denied, the 
charter is revoked, or the charter school will cease operation for any reason. 



7 

 
Such notification shall include, but not be limited to, a description of the circumstances of the 
closure, the effective date of the closure, and the location of student and personnel records.  
(Education Code 47604.32; 5 CCR 11962.1) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
215  Suicide prevention policy 
215.5  Student identification cards, inclusion of safety hotlines 
220  Nondiscrimination 
221.61  Posting of Title IX information on web site 
221.9  Sex equity in competitive athletics 
222  Lactation accommodations for students 
222.5  Pregnant and parenting students, notification of rights 
231.5-231.6  Sexual harassment policy 
234.4  Mandated policy on bullying prevention 
234.6  Bullying and harassment prevention information 
234.7  Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 
17070.10-17079.30  Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act 
17280-17317  Field Act 
17365-17374  Field Act, fitness for occupancy 
32282  Comprehensive safety plan 
32283.5  Online training on bullying prevention 
33479-33479.9  The Eric Parades Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act 
35179.4-35179.6  Interscholastic athletic programs, safety 
35183.1  Graduation ceremonies; tribal regalia or recognized object of religious/cultural significance 
35330  Field trips and excursions; student fees 
38080-38086  School meals 
39831.3  Transportation safety plan 
39843  Disciplinary action against bus driver; report to Department of Motor Vehicles 
41024  Report of expenditure of state facility funds 
42100  Annual statement of receipts and expenditures 
44030.5  Reporting change in employment status due to alleged misconduct 
44237  Criminal record summary 
44691  Information on detection of child abuse 
44830.1  Certificated employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony 
45122.1  Classified employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony 
45125.1  Fingerprinting; employees of contracting entity 
46015  Accommodations for pregnant and parenting students; parental leave 
47600-47616.7  Charter Schools Act of 1992 
47634.2  Nonclassroom-based instruction 
47640-47647  Special education funding for charter schools 
47651  Apportionment of funds, charter schools 
48000  Minimum age of admission for kindergarten; transitional kindergarten 
48010-48011  Minimum age of admission (first grade) 
48206.3-48208  Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction 
48850-48859  Educational placement of foster youth and homeless students 
48901.1  Suspension and expulsion, willful defiance 
48907  Students' exercise of free expression; rules and regulations 
48913.5  Suspended students, homework assignments 
48950  Student speech and other communication 



8 

48985  Parental notification, 
49005-49006.4  Seclusion and restraint 
49011  Student fees 
49014  Public School Fair Debt Collection Act 
49061  Student records 
49062.5  Student records, name or gender changes 
49070  Challenging student records 
49073.2  Privacy of student and parent/guardian personal information 
49076.7  Student records; data privacy; Social Security numbers 
49110  Authority to issue work permits 
49381  Human trafficking prevention 
49414  Epinephrine auto-injectors 
49414.3  Administration of opioid antagonist 
49428  Notification of mental health services 
49430-49434  The Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001, especially: 
49431.9  Advertisement of non-nutritious foods 
49475  Health and safety, concussions and head injuries 
49557.5  Child Hunger Prevention and Fair Treatment Act of 2017 
49564  Meals for needy students 
51224.7  Mathematics placement policy 
51225.1-51225.2  Exemption from local graduation requirements; acceptance of coursework 
51225.6  Instruction in cardiopulmonary resuscitation 
51513  Diploma of graduation, without passage of high school exit examination 
51745-51749.6  Independent study 
51930-51939  California Healthy Youth Act 
52052  Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plans 
52075  Uniform complaint procedures 
56026  Special education 
56040.3  Availability of assistive technology devices 
56145-56146  Special education services in charter schools 
56365-56366.12  Nonpublic, nonsectarian schools 
60600-60649  Assessment of academic achievement 
64000  Categorical programs included in consolidated application 
64001  School plan for student achievement, consolidated application programs 
65000-65001  School site councils 
69432.9-69432.92 Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average and high school graduation 
CORPORATIONS CODE 
5110-6910  Nonprofit public benefit corporations 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
1090-1099  Prohibitions applicable to specified officers 
3540-3549.3  Educational Employment Relations Act 
6250-6270  California Public Records Act 
54950-54963  Ralph M. Brown Act 
81000-91014  Political Reform Act of 1974 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
104420  Tobacco Use Prevention Education grant program 
104559  Tobacco-free schools 
LABOR CODE 
1198.5  Personnel records related to performance and grievance 
PENAL CODE 
667.5  Definition of violent felony 
1192.7  Definition of serious felony 



9 

VEHICLE CODE 
28160  Child safety alert system 
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 
Article 9, Section 5  Common school system 
Article 16, Section 8.5  Public finance; school accountability report card 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures 
11700.1-11705  Independent study 
11960-11969  Charter schools 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 24 
101 et seq.  California Building Standards Code 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; discrimination based on sex 
6311  State plan 
7221-7221j  Charter schools 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
11431-11435  McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
200.1-200.78  Accountability 
COURT DECISIONS 
Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District, (2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 986 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
Opinion No. 11-201 (2018) 
89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006) 
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997) 
78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 297 (1995) 
CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS DECISIONS 
Student v. Horizon Instructional Systems Charter School, (2012) OAH Case No. 2011060763 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Uncharted Waters: Recommendations for Prioritizing Student Achievement and Effective Governance in 
California's Charter Schools, September 2018 
Charter Schools in Focus, Issue 2: Ensuring Effective Oversight, Governance Brief, October 2017 
Charter Schools: A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. 2016 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
California School Accounting Manual 
Sample Copy of a Memorandum of Understanding 
Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 17-01, July 28, 2017 
Special Education and Charter Schools: Questions and Answers, September 10, 2002 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION GUIDANCE 
Charter Schools Program: Title V, Part B of the ESEA, January 2014 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Charter Schools Association:  http://www.calcharters.org 
California Department of Education, Charter Schools:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/cs 
National Association of Charter School Authorizers: http://www.qualitycharters.org 
U.S. Department of Education:  http://www.ed.gov 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 14, 2020 



1 
**NEW** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 
Exhibit 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans  
 
E 0420.41 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL OVERSIGHT 
 
REQUIREMENTS FOR CHARTER SCHOOLS 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 47610, charter schools are exempt from Education Code provisions governing 
school districts unless otherwise specified in law. However, charter schools, like other public schools, are subject 
to the state and federal constitutions, applicable federal laws, state laws that apply to governmental agencies in 
general, and state laws that are expressly applicable to charter schools. The following Exhibit lists some, but not 
necessarily all, legal requirements that apply to charter schools and may be used by districts to monitor a charter 
school's compliance with law. Violation of any law may subject the charter school to revocation pursuant to 
Education Code 47607; see BP 0420.43 - Charter School Revocation. 

 
A charter school shall be subject to the terms of its charter; any memorandum of understanding 
between the school and the district Governing Board; the state and federal constitutions; applicable 
federal laws; state laws that apply to governmental agencies in general; and other legal 
requirements that are expressly applicable to charter schools, including, but not limited to, the 
following requirements.  
 
Governance 
 
1. Comply with the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code 54950-54963), California Public 

Records Act (Government Code 6250-6270), conflict of interest laws (Government Code 
1090-1099), and Political Reform Act (Government Code 81000-91014), including the 
adoption of a conflict of interest code pursuant to Government Code 87300  (Education 
Code 47604.1) 

 
2. Except as otherwise authorized by Government Code 54954, hold the meetings of its 

governing body within the physical boundaries of the county in which the charter school 
is located or, if a nonclassroom-based charter school that does not have a facility or operates 
one or more resource centers, hold governing body meetings within the physical boundaries 
of the county in which the greatest number of students enrolled in the charter school reside. 
In addition, a two-way teleconference location shall be established at the school site and/or 
resource center, as applicable.  (Education Code 47604.1) 

 
Operations 
 
3. Not be operated as, or be operated by, a for-profit corporation, a for-profit educational 

management organization, or a for-profit charter management organization  (Education 
Code 47604) 



2 

 
4. Be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices, and all other 

operations  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Admission/Enrollment 
 
5. Adhere to all laws establishing the minimum age for public school attendance (Education 

Code 47610) 
 
6. Serve students who are California residents and who, if over 19 years of age, are 

continuously enrolled in a public school and making "satisfactory progress" toward a high 
school diploma as defined in 5 CCR 11965  (Education Code 47612) 

 
Note:  Education Code 56145 requires charter schools to serve students with disabilities in the same manner as 
other public schools. Pursuant to Education Code 47646, districts must ensure that each charter school that is 
deemed to be a public school of the district, and is not its own local educational agency (LEA) for special education 
purposes, receives an equitable share of special education funding and services for students with disabilities who 
are enrolled in the charter school. 
 
If a charter school is operating as a public school of the district for purposes of special education, the district retains 
responsibility and must determine how to ensure that students with disabilities receive a free appropriate public 
education (FAPE). However, as indicated in the California Office of Administrative Hearings ruling in Student v. 
Horizon Instructional Systems Charter School, a charter school operating as its own LEA for purposes of special 
education, including a charter school offering an independent study program, is the entity responsible for providing 
FAPE. 

 
7. Serve students with disabilities in the same manner as such students are served in other 

district schools  (Education Code 47646, 56145) 
 
8. Admit all students who wish to attend the charter school, according to the following criteria 

and procedures: 
 
a. Admission to the charter school shall not be determined according to the student's 

or parent/guardian's place of residence within the state, except that any existing 
public school converting partially or entirely to a charter school shall adopt and 
maintain a policy giving admission preference to students who reside within that 
school's former attendance area.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
If a charter school will be physically located in a public elementary school 
attendance area in which 50 percent or more of the student enrollment is eligible 
for free or reduced-price meals, it may also establish an admission preference for 
students who are currently enrolled in that public elementary school and for 
students who reside in the public school attendance area.  (Education Code 
47605.3) 

 
b. If the number of students who wish to attend the charter school exceeds the school's 

capacity, attendance shall be determined by a public random drawing, with 



3 

preference extended to students currently attending the charter school and students 
who reside in the district, except as provided for in Education Code 47614.5.  
(Education Code 47605) 

 
c. Other admission preferences may be permitted by the Board of the district on an 

individual school basis consistent with law.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
9. Not discourage a student from enrolling or seeking to enroll in the charter school, nor 

encourage a current student from disenrolling, for any reason, including, but not limited to, 
the student's academic performance, nationality, race, ethnicity, or sexual orientation or 
because the student is a student with disabilities, academically low achieving, an English 
learner, neglected or delinquent, homeless, economically disadvantaged, or a foster youth. 
The charter school shall not request or require a student's records to be submitted before 
enrollment. The charter school shall post on its web site the California Department of 
Education's (CDE) notice of these requirements and shall provide the notice to 
parents/guardians or students age 18 and older when the parent/guardian or student inquires 
about enrollment, before conducting an enrollment lottery, and before disenrollment of a 
student. (Education Code 47605) 

 
10. Immediately enroll a homeless student, except where such enrollment would conflict with 

Education Code 47605(d)  (Education Code 48850; 42 USC 11431-11435) 
 
11. Comply with the requirements of Education Code 48850-48859 regarding the enrollment 

and placement of foster youth  (Education Code 48853.5, 48859) 
 
12. Allow a student who is enrolled in the charter school but receiving individual instruction 

at home or a hospital due to a temporary disability to return to the charter school when well 
enough to do so, provided the student returns during the school year in which the individual 
instruction was initiated  (Education Code 48207.3) 

 
Nondiscrimination 
 
13. Not discriminate against any student on the basis of the characteristics listed in Education 

Code 220  (Education Code 47605) 
 
14. Adopt policy that is consistent with the model policy developed by the California Attorney 

General addressing the charter school's response to immigration enforcement, notify 
parents/guardians of their children's right to a free public education regardless of 
immigration status or religious beliefs, prohibit the collection of information or documents 
regarding the immigration status of students or their family members, and fulfill other 
requirements of Education Code 234.7 

 
15. Post specified information related to the prohibition against discrimination under Title IX 

of the Education Amendments of 1972 in a prominent and conspicuous location on the 
school web site or on the web site of the charter operator  (Education Code 221.61) 

 



4 

16. If the charter school offers competitive athletics, annually post on the school's web site or 
on the web site of the charter operator the total enrollment of the school classified by 
gender, the number of students who participate in competitive athletics classified by 
gender, and the number of boys' and girls' teams classified by sport and by competition 
level  (Education Code 221.9) 

 
17. Provide specified accommodations to pregnant and parenting students, including, but not 

limited to, the provision of parental leave and reasonable accommodations on campus to a 
lactating student to express breast milk, breastfeed an infant child, or address other needs 
related to breastfeeding. The charter school shall notify pregnant and parenting students 
and parents/guardians of the rights and options available to pregnant and parenting 
students.  (Education Code 222, 222.5, 46015) 

 
18. If a direct-funded charter school, adopt and implement uniform complaint procedures to 

resolve complaints of unlawful discrimination or alleged violation of a state or federal law 
or regulation governing educational programs, in accordance with 5 CCR 4600-4670  (5 
CCR 4600) 

 
Tuition and Fees 
 
19. Not charge tuition  (Education Code 47605) 
 

Note:  Education Code 47605 specifically prohibits a charter school from charging tuition, but does not mention 
fees or other charges. As clarified in the California Department of Education's (CDE) advisory Pupil Fees, 
Deposits, and Other Charges, because charter schools are subject to the California Constitution, the free school 
guarantee of the California Constitution, Article 9, Section 5, applies to charter schools. Charter schools may only 
charge fees which are explicitly authorized by law for charter schools. For example, charter schools may charge 
fees for meals and field trips pursuant to Education Code 35330, 38082, and 38084 because those provisions apply 
to charter schools, but charter schools may not necessarily charge other fees authorized by law for school districts. 

 
20. Not charge student fees for any activity that is an integral component of the educational 

program, except as authorized by those Education Code provisions that explicitly apply to 
charter schools 

 
21. Not bill, nor take any negative action against, a student or former student for a debt owed 

to the charter school. The school shall provide an itemized invoice for any amount owed 
by the parent/guardian on behalf of a student or former student before pursuing payment 
of the debt and shall provide a receipt to the parent/guardian for each payment made to the 
school.  (Education Code 49014) 

 
School Plans 
 
22. Adopt a local control and accountability plan (LCAP) and update the plan by July 1 each 

year, after holding a public hearing, consulting with specified stakeholders, and using the 
template adopted by the State Board of Education (SBE). As part of the LCAP adoption 
and annual update to the LCAP, the governing body of the charter school shall separately 



5 

adopt a local control funding formula budget overview for parents/guardians, based on the 
template developed by the SBE.  (Education Code 47604.33, 47606.5, 52064, 52064.1) 

 
23. If the charter school applies for federal and/or state categorical program funding through 

the state's consolidated application, establish a school site council to develop and annually 
review a school plan for student achievement, unless the school chooses to use its LCAP 
for this purpose  (Education Code 64000-64001, 65000-65001) 

 
24. Develop a comprehensive safety plan in accordance with Education Code 32282 and 

review and update the plan by March 1 each year  (Education Code 47605) 
 
25. Develop a transportation safety plan that includes procedures to ensure that a student is not 

left unattended on a school bus, student activity bus, youth bus, or child care motor vehicle 
and procedures for designating an adult chaperone, other than the driver, to accompany 
students on a school activity bus. In addition, ensure that each school bus, student activity 
bus, youth bus, or child care motor vehicle is equipped with a child safety alert system that 
requires the driver to either manually contact or scan the device, thereby prompting the 
driver to inspect the entirety of the interior of the vehicle before exiting, unless the student 
activity bus is exempted by law.  (Education Code 39831.3; Vehicle Code 28160) 

 
Curriculum and Instruction 
 

Note:  Education Code 47612.5 specifies, by grade level, the minimum number of instructional minutes that must 
be offered each fiscal year. Any charter school that fails to meet this requirement will have its state apportionment 
reduced in proportion to the percentage of instructional minutes that the school fails to offer. Education Code 
47612.5 and 47612.6 provide that neither the State Board of Education nor the Superintendent of Public Instruction 
may waive the required number of instructional minutes but may waive the fiscal penalties under specified 
conditions. 

 
26. Offer at least the number of instructional minutes required by law for the grade levels 

provided by the charter school  (Education Code 47612.5) 
 
27. If the charter school offers a kindergarten program, also offer a transitional kindergarten 

program to students whose fifth birthday is from September 2 through December 2  
(Education Code 48000) 

 
28. If the charter school serves students in grade 9, adopt a fair, objective, and transparent 

mathematics placement policy with specified components  (Education Code 51224.7) 
 
29. If the charter school serves students in any of grades 7-12, provide comprehensive sexual 

health education and human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) prevention education at least 
once in junior high or middle school and once in high school(Education Code 51931, 
51934) 

 



6 

30. If the charter school serves students in any of grades 6-12, identify and implement methods 
of informing parents/guardians of human trafficking prevention resources (Education Code 
49381) 

 
Note:  Education Code 47612.5 provides that charter schools offering independent study are subject to Education 
Code 51745-51749.6. Education Code 51745 requires that no course included among the courses required for 
graduation may be offered solely through independent study. However, pursuant to 5 CCR 11705, a charter school 
offering grades 9-12 shall be deemed to be an "alternative school" for purposes of independent study and thus, 
according to CDE, would comply with this provision because students in such alternative schools are enrolled 
voluntarily and, if they wished, could attend any other district high school in which the courses were offered via 
classroom instruction. 

 
31. If the charter school provides independent study, meet the requirements of Education Code 

51745-51749.6, except that the school may be allowed to offer courses required for 
graduation solely through independent study as an exception to Education Code 51745(e)  
(Education Code 47612.5, 51747.3; 5 CCR 11705) 

 
32. Accept and provide full or partial credit for coursework satisfactorily completed by a foster 

youth, homeless student, former juvenile court school student, child of a military family, 
migrant student, or a student participating in a newcomer program while attending another 
school  (Education Code 51225.2) 

 
33. Meet all statewide standards and conduct any statewide assessments applicable to 

noncharter public schools  (Education Code 47605, 47612.5, 60605) 
 
Special Education 
 
34. Provide assistive technology devices in a student's home or other settings if the  

individualized education program team determines that such access is necessary. The 
charter school shall also provide an assistive technology device or comparable device to a 
student who enrolls in another local educational agency, for two months after the student 
leaves the charter school or until alternative arrangements can be made, whichever occurs 
first.  (Education Code 56040.3) 

 
35. If the charter school is an independent member of a special education local plan area and 

has a master contract with a nonpublic, nonsectarian school: 
 
a. Pay the full amount of the tuition or fees for students with disabilities enrolled in 

programs or services provided pursuant to that contract  (Education Code 56365) 
 
b. Conduct at least one onsite visit to the nonpublic, nonsectarian school prior to a 

student's placement and at least once each school year (Education Code 56366.1) 
 
 
 
 



7 

High School Graduation 
 
36. Exempt a foster youth, homeless student, former juvenile court school student, child of a 

military family, or migrant student who transfers between schools after the second year of 
high school, or a student participating in a newcomer program for newly immigrant 
students in grades 11-12, from any of the charter school's graduation requirements that 
exceed state requirements, unless the charter school determines that the student is 
reasonably able to complete the requirements by the end of the fourth year of high school  
(Education Code 51225.1, 51225.2) 

 
37. Grant a high school diploma to any student who completed grade 12 in the 2003-04 through 

2014-15 school year and met all applicable graduation requirements other than the passage 
of the high school exit examination  (Education Code 51413) 

 
Student Expression 
 
38. Allow a student to wear traditional tribal regalia or recognized objects of religious or 

cultural significance as an adornment at school graduation ceremonies, unless the charter 
school determines that an item is likely to cause a substantial disruption of, or material 
interference with, the ceremony  (Education Code 35183.1) 

 
Note:  Education Code 48907 requires charter schools to establish a written "publications code" related to students' 
rights to freedom of speech and of the press. These written rules and regulations must include reasonable provisions 
for the time, place, and manner in which free expression may take place within the charter school's jurisdiction. 

 
39. Provide students the right to exercise freedom of speech and of the press including, but not 

limited to, the use of bulletin boards; the distribution of printed materials or petitions; the 
wearing of buttons, badges, and other insignia; and the right of expression in official 
publications  (Education Code 48907, 48950) 

 
Staffing 
 
40. Require its teachers to hold a certificate, permit, or other document issued by the 

Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) as required for the teacher's certificated 
assignment.  Teachers employed by the charter school during the 2019-20 school year shall 
have until July 1, 2025 to obtain the required certificate required.  (Education Code 47605, 
47605.4) 

 
41. Not hire any person who has been convicted of a violent or serious felony except as 

otherwise provided by law, and, if the charter school contracts with an entity for specified 
services, verify that any employee of that entity who will have contact with students has 
had a criminal background check  (Education Code 44830.1, 45122.1, 45125.1) 

 
42. Report to the CTC any change in a certificated employee's employment status (dismissal, 

nonreelection, resignation, suspension, unpaid administrative leave for more than 10 days, 



8 

retirement, or other decision not to employ or reemploy) as a result of an allegation of 
misconduct or while an allegation of misconduct is pending (Education Code 44030.5) 

 
43. If the charter school chooses to make the state teachers' retirement plan available to its 

employees, meet the requirements of Education Code 47611 regarding the State Teachers' 
Retirement System  (Education Code 47610) 

 
44. Meet the requirements of Government Code 3540-3549.3 related to collective bargaining 

in public education employment  (Education Code 47611.5) 
 
Parent/Guardian Involvement 
 
45. On a regular basis, consult with parents/guardians and teachers regarding the charter 

school's educational programs  (Education Code 47605) 
 
46. Notify parents/guardians of applicant students and currently enrolled students that parental 

involvement is not a requirement for acceptance to, or continued enrollment at, the charter 
school  (Education Code 47605) 

 
47. If 15 percent or more of the students at the charter school speak a single primary language 

other than English, provide all notices, reports, statements, or records sent to 
parents/guardians in English and in the primary language  (Education Code 48985) 

 
Nutrition 
 
48. Provide each eligible student with one nutritionally adequate free or reduced-price meal 

during each school day, except as provided for a charter school that offers nonclassroom-
based instruction  (Education Code 47613.5) 

 
49. If the charter school participates in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast program, 

not promote any food or beverage during the school day that does not comply with state 
nutritional standards pursuant to Education Code 49430-49434, and not participate in a 
corporate incentive program that offers free or discounted non-nutritious foods or 
beverages as rewards for students who reach certain academic goals  (Education Code 
49431.9) 

 
50. If the charter school participates in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast program, 

notify parents/guardians within 10 days of their child's meal account reaching a negative 
balance; not take any action directed at a student to collect unpaid school meal fees; ensure 
that a student with unpaid school meal fees is not denied a  meal of the student's choice, 
shamed, or treated differently; and prohibit student discipline from resulting in the denial 
or delay of a nutritionally adequate meal (Education Code 49557.5) 

 
51. If the charter school participates in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast program 

and is a very high poverty school, as defined, apply to the California Department of 



9 

Education (CDE) to provide lunch and/or breakfast free of charge to all students under a 
federal universal service provision  (Education Code 49564) 

 
Student Health 
 
52. Adopt a policy on suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention for grades 7-12, and 

an age-appropriate policy for grades K-6, and review the policy at least every five years  
(Education Code 215) 

 
53. If the charter school serves grades 7-12 and issues student identification cards, print the 

telephone numbers of the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline and the National Domestic 
Violence Hotline on the identification cards  (Education Code 215.5) 

 
54. Notify students and parents/guardians at least twice during the school year on how to 

initiate access to available student mental health services on campus or in the community  
(Education Code 49428) 

 
55. Provide annual training on child abuse and neglect reporting requirements to employees 

and persons working on the charter school's behalf who are mandated reporters, within the 
first six weeks of each school year or within six weeks of employment  (Education Code 
44691) 

 
56. If the charter school offers an athletic program, annually provide information sheets about 

concussions/head injuries and sudden cardiac arrest to athletes and their parents/guardians, 
which must be signed and returned to the school before the athlete initiates practice or 
competition. In the event that an athlete is suspected of sustaining a concussion or head 
injury, passes out, or faints during or immediately after participation in an athletic activity, 
the student shall be immediately removed from the activity for the remainder of the day 
and shall not be permitted to return to the activity until the student is evaluated by a licensed 
health care provider and receives written clearance to do so.  (Education Code 33479-
33479.5, 49475) 

 
57. If the charter school offers an interscholastic athletic program, develop and post a written 

emergency action plan that describes procedures to be followed in the event of sudden 
cardiac arrest and other medical emergencies, acquire at least one automated external 
defibrillator (AED) for the school, and make the AED available at on-campus athletic 
activities or events  (Education Code 35179.4, 35179.6) 

 
58. Provide school nurses or other voluntary, trained personnel with emergency epinephrine 

auto-injectors of the type required pursuant to Education Code 49414  (Education Code 
49414) 

 
59. If the charter school chooses to make an opioid antagonist available to persons suffering, 

or reasonably believed to be suffering, from an opioid overdose, comply with the 
requirements of Education Code 49414.3, including, but not limited to, providing training 
to personnel who volunteer to administer the opioid antagonist 



10 

 
Student Conduct/Discipline 
 
60. Adopt a policy on bullying and cyberbullying prevention, post specified information on 

bullying and harassment prevention, and annually make CDE's online training module on 
bullying prevention available to school site certificated employees and other employees 
who have regular interaction with students  (Education Code 234.4, 234.6, 32283.5) 

 
61. Adopt and display a written policy on sexual harassment, include the policy as part of any 

orientation for new and continuing students, and post a poster notifying students of the 
policy  (Education Code 231.5, 231.6) 

 
62. Prohibit seclusion and behavioral restraint of students as a means of discipline, and only 

use such methods to control student behavior that poses a clear and present danger of 
serious physical harm to a student or others that cannot be immediately prevented by a less 
restrictive response  (Education Code 49005-49006.4) 

 
63. Neither recommend for expulsion a student in grades K-12 nor suspend a student in grades 

K-8 for disrupting school activities or otherwise willfully defying the authority of school 
personnel in the performance of their duties  (Education Code 48901.1) 

 
64. Upon request, provide a student who is suspended for two or more days with the homework 

assigned during the period of suspension  (Education Code 48913.5) 
 
Student and Parent/Guardian Records 
 
65. Not collect or solicit social security numbers or the last four digits of social security 

numbers from students or their parents/guardians unless otherwise required to do so by 
state or federal law  (Education Code 49076.7) 

 
66. Upon written request, not include the directory information of a student or the personal 

information of a parent/guardian, as defined, in the minutes of a meeting of the governing 
body  (Education Code 49073.2) 

 
67. If a student subject to compulsory full-time education is expelled or leaves the charter 

school without graduating or completing the school year for any reason, notify the 
Superintendent of the school district of the student's last known address within 30 days 
and, upon request, provide that district with a copy of the student's cumulative record, 
including a transcript of grades or report card, and health information  (Education Code 
47605) 

 
68. If the charter school serves high school students, submit to the Student Aid Commission, 

for use in the Cal Grant program, the grade point average (GPA) of all students in grade 12 
and verification of high school graduation or its equivalent for students who graduated in 
the prior academic year. However, such information shall not be submitted when students 



11 

opt out or are permitted by the rules of the Student Aid Commission to provide test scores 
in lieu of the GPA.  (Education Code 69432.9, 69432.92) 

 
69. Upon receipt of government-issued documentation of a change of name or gender or, if 

such documentation is not available, upon request in accordance with the procedure in 
Education Code 49070, update and reissue a former student's records to include the 
student's updated legal name or gender  (Education Code 49062.5, 49070) 

 
Facilities 
 
70. Comply with the California Building Standards Code as adopted and enforced by the local 

building enforcement agency with jurisdiction over the area in which the charter school is 
located, unless the charter school facility meets either of the following conditions:  
(Education Code 47610, 47610.5) 
 
a. The facility complies with the Field Act pursuant to Education Code 17280-17317 

and 17365-17374. 
 
b. The facility is exclusively owned or controlled by an entity that is not subject to the 

California Building Standards Code, including, but not limited to, the federal 
government. 

 
Finance 
 
71. Promptly respond to all reasonable inquiries from the district, the county office of 

education, or the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI), including, but not limited to, 
inquiries regarding the charter school's financial records  (Education Code 47604.3) 

 
72. Maintain written contemporaneous records that document all student attendance and make 

these records available for audit and inspection  (Education Code 47612.5) 
 
73. Identify and report to the SPI any portion of the charter school's average daily attendance 

that is generated through nonclassroom-based instruction, including, but not limited to, 
independent study, home study, work study, and distance and computer-based education  
(Education Code 47612.5, 47634.2; 5 CCR 11963.2) 

 
74. Annually prepare and submit financial reports to the district Board and the County 

Superintendent of Schools in accordance with the following reporting cycle: 
 

a. By July 1, a preliminary budget for the current fiscal year. For a charter school in 
its first year of operation, financial statements submitted with the charter petition 
pursuant to Education Code 47605(g) will satisfy this requirement.  (Education 
Code 47604.33) 

 
b. By December 15, an interim financial report for the current fiscal year reflecting 

changes through October 31.  (Education Code 47604.33) 



12 

 
c. By March 15, a second interim financial report for the current fiscal year reflecting 

changes through January 31.  (Education Code 47604.33) 
 
d. By September 15, a final unaudited report for the full prior year.  The report 

submitted to the Board shall include an annual statement of all the charter school's 
receipts and expenditures for the preceding fiscal year.  (Education Code 42100, 
47604.33) 

 
e. By December 15, a copy of the charter school's annual, independent financial audit 

report for the preceding fiscal year, unless the charter school's audit is encompassed 
in the district's audit. The audit report shall also be submitted to the State Controller 
and CDE.  (Education Code 47605) 

 
75. If the charter school receives state facilities funding pursuant to the Leroy F. Greene School 

Facilities Act (Education Code 17070.10-17079.30), annually report a detailed list of all 
expenditures of state funds and of the school's matching funds for completed projects, and 
submit an audit of completed facilities projects within one year of project completion  
(Education Code 41024) 

 
Accountability 
 
76. Annually adopt a school accountability report card  (Education Code 47612; California 

Constitution, Article 16, Section 8.5) 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Exhibit version: April 14, 2020 



1 
**NEW** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans  
 
BP 0420.42 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL RENEWAL 
 

Note:  The following policy is optional.  When the term of a charter granted by the Governing Board pursuant to 
Education Code 47605 (see BP/AR 0420.4 - Charter School Authorization) is due to expire, the charter school 
must submit a petition for renewal to the Board in accordance with Education Code 47607, as amended by AB 
1505 (Ch. 486, Statutes of 2019), and Education Code 47607.2, as added by AB 1505. 
 
For a charter that was granted by the State Board of Education (SBE) on appeal after being denied by the district, 
the renewal petition must first be submitted to the district board that denied the charter, pursuant to Education 
Code 47605. A petition for the renewal of a charter that was originally granted by the County Board of Education 
on appeal after being denied by the district must be submitted directly to the County Board as the chartering 
authority pursuant to 5 CCR 11966.5. 

 
The Governing Board believes that the ongoing operation of a charter school should be dependent 
on the school's effectiveness in achieving its mission and goals for student learning and other 
student outcomes. Whenever a charter school submits a petition for renewal of its charter, the 
Board shall review the petition thoroughly and in a timely manner. The Board shall consider 
renewal petitions only of charters originally authorized by the Board itself or by the State Board 
of Education on appeal after initial denial by the Board. 
(cf. 0420.4 - Charter School Authorization) 
(cf. 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight) 
(cf. 0420.43 - Charter School Revocation) 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
 
The Board shall deny the renewal petition of any charter school operated as or by a for-profit 
corporation, a for-profit educational management organization, or a for-profit charter management 
organization.  (Education Code 47604) 
 
When a charter school, concurrently with its renewal petition, proposes to expand operations to 
one or more additional sites or grade levels, the charter school shall request a material revision to 
its charter.  The material revision may be made only with the approval of the Board and in 
accordance with the standards and criteria in Education Code 47605 for material revisions.  
(Education Code 47607) 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 

Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district timelines for the submission of charter 
renewal petitions.  Education Code 47605, as amended by AB 1505 and AB 1595 (Ch. 543, Statutes of 2019), 
requires that the Board grant or deny the renewal petition within 90 days of receiving the petition; see section 
entitled "Timelines for Board Action" below. However, it is recommended that charter schools submit their petition 
sufficiently early (e.g., as much as nine months before the term of the charter is due to expire) so that, in the event 
that the Board denies the renewal, the charter school may be able to appeal to the County Board and then to SBE 
and, if the school closes, to allow students of the charter school to transfer to another school. 

 
The Board recommends that a charter school submit its petition for renewal to the Board 
sufficiently early before the expiration of the term of the charter to allow the Board's deliberations 
and decision on the renewal petition to be completed with minimal disruption to the charter 
school's educational program in the renewal year. 
 
The petition for renewal shall include a reasonably comprehensive description of how the charter 
school has met all new charter school requirements enacted into law after the charter was originally 
granted or last renewed.  (Education Code 47607; 5 CCR 11966.4) 
 
Criteria for Granting or Denying Renewal 
 

Note:  AB 1505 amended Education Code 47607 and added Education Code 47607.2 to revise the criteria for 
granting or denying charter renewals and to authorize different lengths of renewals for high-performing, middle-
performing, and low-performing charter schools. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 47607, charter renewals are subject to the same standards and criteria as initial charter 
authorizations as specified in Education Code 47605, except that the Board may not deny the renewal of an existing 
charter school based on a finding that (1) the district has a negative or qualified interim certification and is not 
positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school or (2) the charter school is unlikely to serve 
the interests of the entire community in which the school will be located (i.e., the school would substantially 
undermine or duplicate existing district services or programs). However, these two criteria may be used to deny a 
proposed expansion of an existing charter school. 

 
Renewals shall be governed by the same standards and criteria that apply to new charter petitions 
as set forth in Education Code 47605. However, a charter renewal shall not be denied based on the 
fiscal impact of the charter school on the district or a finding that the charter school is unlikely to 
serve the interests of the entire community in which the school is located, as described in Education 
Code 47605.  (Education Code 47607) 
 
The signature requirement for charter authorization petitions is not applicable to petitions for 
renewal.  (Education Code 47607)  
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 47607.2, the review of the charter school's performance must be based on 
"verified data," defined as data that are derived from nationally recognized, valid, peer-reviewed, and reliable 
sources that are externally produced and include measures of postsecondary outcomes.  SBE is required to identify, 
by January 1, 2021, a list of valid and reliable assessments that must be used by the Board for this purpose. Until 
such a list is available, a charter school under consideration for renewal may present data consistent with the 
definition of "verified data." 

 
In determining whether to grant a charter renewal, the Board shall review both schoolwide 
performance and the performance of numerically significant student subgroups on the state and 



3 

local indicators included in the California School Dashboard, giving greater weight to performance 
on measurements of academic performance.  If the Dashboard indicators are not yet available for 
the most recently completed academic year before renewal, the Board shall consider verifiable 
data provided by the charter school related to the Dashboard indicators, such as data from the 
California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress, or any successor system, for the most 
recent academic year.  (Education Code 47607) 
 
Following the Board's review, a renewal of the charter petition may be granted in accordance with 
a three-tiered system based on school performance, as follows:   
 
1. Renewal of Five to Seven Years 
 

A renewal shall be granted for a period of five to seven years to a charter school that is not 
eligible for technical assistance pursuant to Education Code 47607.3 and that, for two 
consecutive years immediately preceding the renewal, achieved either of the following:  
(Education Code 47607) 
 
a. Received the two highest performance levels schoolwide on all the state indicators 

included in the Dashboard for which the charter school receives performance levels 
 
b. For all measurements of academic performance, received performance levels 

schoolwide that are the same or higher than the state average and, for a majority of 
numerically significant student subgroups performing statewide below the state 
average in each respective year, received performance levels that are higher than 
the state average 

 
2. Renewal of Five Years 
 

a. A renewal shall be granted for five years if clear and convincing evidence, 
demonstrated by verified data, shows either of the following:  (Education Code 
47607.2) 
 
(1) Measurable increases in academic achievement, as defined by at least one 

year's progress for each year in school 
 
(2) Strong postsecondary outcomes, as defined by college enrollment, 

persistence, and completion rates equal to similar peers 
 

b. For any such charter school, the Board may deny the renewal petition upon making 
written factual findings that the charter school failed to meet or make sufficient 
progress toward meeting standards that provide a benefit to students at the school, 
that the closure of the charter school is in the best interest of students, and that the 
Board’s decision provided greater weight to performance on measurements of 
academic performance.   (Education Code 47607.2) 



4 

 
3. Denial with Option for Two-Year Renewal 
 

a. The Board shall generally not renew a charter if, for two consecutive years 
immediately preceding the renewal decision, either of the following applies:  
(Education Code 47607.2) 
 
(1) The charter school has received the two lowest performance levels 

schoolwide on all the state indicators included in the Dashboard for which 
it receives performance levels. 

 
(2) For all measurements of academic performance, the charter school has 

received performance levels schoolwide that are the same or lower than the 
state average and, for a majority of numerically significant student 
subgroups performing statewide below the state average in each respective 
year, received performance levels that are lower than the state average. 

 
b. However, the Board may grant a two-year renewal to any such charter school if the 

Board makes written factual findings, setting forth specific facts to support the 
findings, that:   
 
(1) The charter school is taking meaningful steps to address the underlying 

cause(s) of low performance, and those steps are reflected, or will be 
reflected, in a written plan adopted by the governing body of the charter 
school. 

 
(2) There is clear and convincing evidence, demonstrated by verified data, 

showing achievement of the criteria specified in item #2a above 
 
In addition to all the grounds stated above for denial of a charter renewal, the Board may deny 
renewal of a charter upon a finding that the school is demonstrably unlikely to successfully 
implement the program set forth in the petition due to substantial fiscal or governance factors or a 
finding that the school is not serving all students who wish to attend. When denying a charter 
renewal for either of these reasons, the Board shall provide the charter school at least 30 days' 
notice of the alleged violation and a reasonable opportunity to cure the violation, including the 
submission of a proposed corrective action plan. The renewal shall be denied if the Board finds 
either that the corrective action proposed by the charter school has been unsuccessful or that the 
violations are sufficiently severe and pervasive as to render a corrective action plan unviable.  Any 
finding that a school is not serving all students who wish to attend shall specifically identify the 
evidence supporting the finding. (Education Code 47607) 
 
 



5 

Note:  Charter schools that serve high-risk students may qualify for the state's Dashboard Alternative School Status 
(DASS) program, which uses modified methods of measurement for accountability indicators when appropriate. 
Charter schools that participate in the DASS are subject to the following criteria specified in Education Code 
46607, as amended by AB 1505. 

 
A charter school that is eligible for the state's Dashboard Alternative School Status shall not be 
subject to any of the above criteria. Instead, in determining whether to grant a charter renewal for 
such a charter school, the Board shall consider, in addition to the charter school's performance on 
the state and local indicators included in the Dashboard, the charter school's performance on 
alternative metrics applicable to the charter school based on the student population served. The 
Board shall meet with the charter school during the first year of the charter school's term to 
mutually agree to discuss alternative metrics to be considered and shall notify the charter school 
of the alternative metrics to be used within 30 days of this meeting. The Board may deny a charter 
renewal only upon making written findings, setting forth specific facts to support the findings, that 
the closure of the charter school is in the best interest of students.  (Education Code 47607) 
 
Timelines for Board Action 
 

Note:  State law does not expressly provide a timeline for a public hearing on the renewal petition or for the Board's 
final decision on the renewal. However, pursuant to Education Code 47607, renewals are generally subject to the 
same standards and criteria applicable to initial charter authorizations, as specified in Education Code 47605.  As 
amended by AB 1505 and AB 1595, Education Code 47605 extends the timeline for the hearing for a charter 
petition from 30 to 60 days of the receipt of the petition.  In addition, Education Code 47605 defines receipt of the 
petition as the date that the petitioner submits the petition to the district, and requires the Board to publish staff 
recommendations regarding the petition at least 15 days prior to the hearing at which the Board will grant or deny 
the petition. The following section reflects the timelines established for initial charter authorizations. 

 
Within 60 days of receiving the renewal petition, the Board shall hold a public hearing to review 
documentation submitted by the charter school and obtain public input. A petition is deemed 
received on the day the petitioner submits a petition to the district office, along with a signed 
certification that the petitioner deems the petition to be complete.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
The Board shall either grant or deny the charter renewal within 90 days of receiving the petition, 
or within 120 days with the consent of both the petitioner and the Board. (Education Code 47605) 
 
At least 15 days before the public hearing at which the Board will grant or deny the charter petition, 
the Board shall publish all staff recommendations and recommended findings regarding the 
petition.  During the public hearing, petitioners shall have equal time and opportunity to present 
evidence and testimony to respond to the staff recommendations and findings.  (Education Code 
47605) 
 
If the Board fails to make a written factual finding when required for denial of the petition pursuant 
to the section "Criteria for Granting or Denying Renewal" above within the required time period, 
the absence of a written factual finding shall be deemed an approval of the renewal petition.  (5 
CCR 11966.4) 
 



6 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide notification to CDE, within 10 calendar days of the 
Board's action, whenever a renewal of the charter is granted or denied.  (Education Code 47604.32; 
5 CCR 11962.1) 
 
If the Board denies a renewal petition, the charter school may submit its application for renewal to 
the County Board within 30 days of the Board's written factual findings supporting the denial.  
(Education Code 47605, 47607.5) 
 
School Closure 
 
If a charter is not renewed and the charter school ceases operation, the Board and/or the charter 
school shall implement the school closure procedures specified in the charter in accordance with 
Education Code 47605 and 5 CCR 11962.  (Education Code 47603.32) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
47600-47616.7  Charter Schools Act of 1992 
52052  Definition of numerically significant student subgroup 
56145-56146  Special education services in charter schools 
60600-60649  Assessment of academic achievement 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
11960-11969  Charter schools 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
7223-7225  Charter schools 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
The Role of the Charter School Authorizer, Online Course 
Charter Schools: A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. 2016 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Charter Schools Association:  http://www.calcharters.org 
California Department of Education, Charter Schools:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/cs 
National Association of Charter School Authorizers: http://www.charterauthorizers.org 
U.S. Department of Education:  http://www.ed.gov 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 14, 2020 



1 
**NEW** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans  
 
BP 0420.43 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL REVOCATION 
 

Note:  The following policy is optional.  Education Code 47607 and 5 CCR 11968.5.2-11968.5.3 allow the 
Governing Board to revoke any charter it has authorized, when certain substantiated findings are made.  In Today's 
Fresh Start, Inc. v. Los Angeles County Office of Education, the California Supreme Court confirmed that the 
revocation process prescribed in the Education Code provides a charter school with sufficient due process and that 
a charter school is not entitled to any additional evidentiary hearing by a neutral third party. 
 
In addition, Education Code 47604.5 authorizes the State Board of Education (SBE), upon the recommendation of 
the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI), to revoke the charter of any charter school, whether or not SBE is 
the chartering authority, if it makes certain findings relating to gross financial mismanagement, illegal or improper 
use of funds, substantial and sustained departure from measurably successful practices that may jeopardize the 
educational development of students, or failure to improve student outcomes across multiple state and school 
priorities identified in the charter pursuant to Education Code 47605.  SBE revocation procedures are specified in 
5 CCR 11968.5.1. 

 
The Governing Board expects any charter school it authorizes to provide a sound educational 
program that promotes student learning and to carry out its operations in a manner that complies 
with law and the terms of its charter.  The Board may revoke a charter in accordance with law. 
(cf. 0420.4 - Charter School Authorization) 
(cf. 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight) 
(cf. 0420.42 - Charter School Renewal) 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
 
When the Board determines, in writing, that any violation under Education Code 47607 constitutes 
a severe and imminent threat to the health or safety of students, the Board may immediately revoke 
the school's charter. When such a determination is made, the Board shall approve and deliver to 
the charter school's governing body, the County Board of Education, and the California 
Department of Education (CDE) a Notice of Revocation by Determination of a Severe and 
Imminent Threat to Pupil Health or Safety.  (Education Code 47607; 5 CCR 11968.5.3) 
 
In all other circumstances, the Board may revoke a charter after providing due process and using 
the procedures described below.  The Board may revoke a charter if it makes a written factual 
finding specific to that charter school and supported by substantial evidence that the charter school 
has done any of the following:  (Education Code 47607) 
 
1. Committed a material violation of any of the conditions, standards, or procedures set forth 

in the charter 
 
2. Failed to meet or pursue any of the student outcomes identified in the charter 
 



2 

3. Failed to meet generally accepted accounting principles or engaged in fiscal 
mismanagement 

 
4. Violated any law 
 

Note:  Education Code 47607.3, as amended by AB 1505 (Ch. 486, Statutes of 2019), establishes criteria for the 
provision of technical assistance to charter schools, including, but not limited to, the option to request that the SPI 
assign the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE) to provide advice and assistance to the 
school.  If CCEE informs the Board that the charter school has failed or is unable to implement CCEE's 
recommendations or continues to have persistent or acute inadequate performance, then the Board must consider 
revocation of the charter. 

 
The Board shall also consider revoking the charter of any charter school for which the California 
Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE) has provided advice and assistance pursuant to 
Education Code 47607.3 if CCEE has issued either of the following findings:  (Education Code 
47607.3) 
 
1. That the charter school has failed or is unable to implement the recommendations of the 

CCEE 
 
2. That the inadequate performance of the charter school, as based on the California School 

Dashboard, is so persistent or acute as to require revocation of the charter 
 
In determining whether to revoke a charter, the Board shall consider increases in student academic 
achievement for all numerically significant groups of students served by the charter school, as 
defined in Education Code 52052.  (Education Code 47607, 47607.3)  
 
Revocation Procedures 
 
If the Board is considering a revocation of a charter school, it shall take action to approve and 
deliver a Notice of Violation to the charter school's governing body.  The Notice of Violation shall 
identify: (Education Code 47607; 5 CCR 11965, 11968.5.2) 
 
1. The charter school's alleged violation(s). 
 
2. All evidence relied upon by the Board in determining that the charter school committed the 

alleged violation(s), including the date and duration of the alleged violation(s).  The Notice 
shall show that each alleged violation is both material and uncured and that it occurred 
within a reasonable period of time before the Notice of Violation is issued. 

 
3. The period of time that the Board has concluded is a reasonable period of time for the 

charter school to remedy or refute the identified violation(s).  In identifying this time 
period, the Board shall consider the amount of time reasonably necessary to remedy each 
identified violation, which may include the charter school's estimation as to the anticipated 
remediation time. 

 



3 

At least 72 hours prior to any  meeting at which the Board will consider issuing a Notice of 
Violation, the Board shall provide the charter school with notice and all relevant documents related 
to the proposed action.  (5 CCR 11968.5.2) 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
 
By the end of the remedy period identified in the Notice of Violation, the charter school's 
governing body may submit to the Board a detailed written response and supporting evidence 
addressing each identified violation, including, as applicable, a refutation, remedial action taken, 
or proposed remedial action.  (5 CCR 11968.5.2) 
 
At the conclusion of the remedy period specified in the Notice of Violation, the Board shall 
evaluate any response and supporting evidence provided by the charter school's governing body 
and shall take one of the following actions:  (5 CCR 11968.5.2) 
 
1. Discontinue revocation of the charter and provide timely written notice of such action to 

the charter school's governing body 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 47607 and 5 CCR 11968.5.2, a decision to issue a Notice of Intent to Revoke 
as provided in item #2 below must be supported by substantial evidence that the charter school has failed to remedy 
or refute a violation. "Substantial evidence" is not defined in law or state regulations.  When issuing a Notice of 
Intent to Revoke, it is a best practice for the Board to identify all of the evidence relied upon in determining that 
the charter school failed to remedy a violation. The district should consult legal counsel as necessary. 

 
2. Continue revocation of the charter, by issuing a Notice of Intent to Revoke to the charter 

school's governing body within 60 calendar days of the conclusion of the remedy period, 
if there is substantial evidence that the charter school has failed to remedy a violation 
identified in the Notice of Violation or to refute a violation to the Board's satisfaction. All 
evidence relied upon by the Board for the decision shall be included in the Notice of Intent 
to Revoke. 

 
If the Board issues a Notice of Intent to Revoke, it shall hold a public hearing concerning the 
revocation on the date specified in the notice, which shall be no later than 30 days after providing 
the notice.  Within 30 calendar days after the public hearing, or within 60 calendar days if extended 
by written mutual agreement of the Board and the charter school, the Board shall issue a final 
decision on the revocation of the charter.  (Education Code 47607; 5 CCR 11968.5.2) 
 
If the Board fails to meet the timelines specified above for issuing a Notice of Intent to Revoke or 
a final decision, the revocation process shall be deemed terminated.  (5 CCR 11968.5.2) 
 
Within 10 calendar days of the Board's final decision, the Superintendent or designee shall provide 
a copy of the final decision to CDE and the County Board.  (Education Code 47604.32; 5 CCR 
11968.5.2) 
 
Appeals 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 47607 and 5 CCR 11968.5.3-11968.5.5, the Board's decision to revoke a 
charter, including a revocation based on a severe and imminent threat, may be appealed to the County Board of 
Education.  The County Board may reverse the revocation if it determines that the district's findings are not 
supported by substantial evidence, in which case the district may appeal the reversal to SBE.  If the County Board 



4 

upholds the revocation or does not issue a decision within 90 days of its receipt of the appeal, the charter school 
may appeal to SBE.  Pursuant to Education Code 47607, if either the County Board or SBE reverses the revocation, 
the district remains the chartering authority. 
 
Education Code 47607 further provides that, while an appeal is pending, a charter school whose revocation is 
based on a material violation of any of the conditions, standards, or procedures set forth in its charter, or on a 
failure to meet or pursue any of the student outcomes identified in the charter, will continue to qualify as a charter 
school for funding and all other purposes of the Charter Schools Act and may continue to hold all existing grants, 
resources, and facilities in order to ensure that the education of students enrolled in the school is not disrupted. 

 
If the Board revokes a charter, the charter school may, within 30 days of the Board's final decision, 
appeal the revocation to the County Board.  The County Board's decision may subsequently be 
appealed to the State Board of Education by either the charter school or the district.  However, a 
revocation based upon the findings of CCEE pursuant to Education Code 47607.3 may not be 
appealed.  (Education Code 47607, 47607.3; 5 CCR 11968.5.3-11968.5.5) 
 
School Closure 
 
If a charter school ceases operation due to revocation, the Board and/or the charter school shall 
implement the school closure procedures specified in the charter in accordance with Education 
Code 47605 and 5 CCR 11962.  (Education Code 47603.32) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
47600-47616.7  Charter Schools Act of 1992, especially: 
47607  Charter renewals and revocations 
52052  Accountability: numerically significant student subgroups; definition 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
11960-11969  Charter schools, especially: 
11968.5.1-11968.5.5  Charter revocations 
COURT DECISIONS 
Today's Fresh Start, Inc. v. Los Angeles County Office of Education (2013) 57 Cal.4th 197 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
The Role of the Charter School Authorizer, Online Course 
Charter Schools: A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. 2016 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Charter Schools Association:  http://www.calcharters.org 
California Department of Education, Charter Schools:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/cs 
National Association of Charter School Authorizers: http://www.qualitycharters.org 
U.S. Department of Education:  http://www.ed.gov 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 14, 2020 



1 
**NEW** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Business and Noninstructional Operations  
 
BP 3471 
 
PARCEL TAXES 
 

Note:  The following policy is optional. Pursuant to Article 13A of the California Constitution and Government 
Code 50079, districts and county offices of education may levy, with voter approval, a qualified special tax known 
as a parcel tax on real property in accordance with Government Code 50075-50077.5.  Unlike a traditional ad 
valorem property tax which is based on estimated property values and which cannot be levied by school districts, 
taxpayers generally pay a flat rate for a parcel tax regardless of property value.  The funds can be used on any 
activities or items for which general fund moneys can be spent, including general operating expenses, as long as 
the funds are used strictly for the purposes specified in the ballot statement. 
 
A parcel tax is separate from general obligation bonds that may be approved for the construction, reconstruction, 
rehabilitation, or replacement of school facilities. For information regarding the funding of specified facilities 
needs through the issuance of debt, see BP/AR 7214 - General Obligation Bonds. 
 
Districts considering placing a parcel tax on the ballot should consult legal counsel. 

 
The Governing Board recognizes its obligation to provide a high-quality educational program 
within safe facilities and secure campuses, and that additional funds are at times necessary to fulfill 
this responsibility. The Board may consider appropriate methods of financing and, when it is in 
the best interest of the district, may order the placement of a parcel tax on the ballot for approval 
by the voters. 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 3470 - Debt Issuance and Management) 
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 
(cf. 7210 - Facilities Financing) 
(cf. 7214 - General Obligation Bonds) 
 
The Board shall hold a noticed public hearing prior to approving a resolution for the adoption of a 
parcel tax. The resolution shall be approved by a two-thirds vote of the Board in order to be placed 
on the ballot.  The resolution shall include the type and rate of the tax to be levied, the method of 
collection, and the date upon which an election shall be held to approve the levy of the tax.  
(Government Code 50077, 53724) 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Government Code 50079, the parcel tax must be applied uniformly to all taxpayers or all real 
property within the district, unless the Board grants an exemption as authorized by law.  See section on 
"Exemptions" below. 
 
In addition, Government Code 50079 provides that unimproved property may be taxed at a lower rate than 
improved property. However, different tax rates may not be imposed for different classifications of property.  
 
In Borikas v. Alameda Unified School District, the appellate court concluded that the language in Government 
Code 50079 which states that the special tax “apply uniformly to all taxpayers or all real property” does not 
authorize different tax rates for residential and commercial/industrial properties, nor for different sized 
commercial/industrial properties. 



2 

 
The parcel tax shall apply uniformly to all taxpayers or all real property within the district, except 
that unimproved property may be taxed at a lower rate than improved property.  (Government 
Code 50079) 
 
The Board shall consult with legal counsel to ensure compliance with all requirements of law, 
including its determination of the appropriate amount of the proposed parcel tax and whether 
exemptions from the tax will be granted. 
 
Any parcel tax to be proposed for voter approval shall provide for accountability measures, 
including, but not limited to, a statement indicating the specific purposes of the special tax and that 
the proceeds of the tax shall be used only for the specific purposes identified, creation of a separate 
account into which the proceeds shall be deposited, and annual reporting pursuant to Government 
Code 50075.3.  (Government Code 50075.1) 
 
No district funds, services, supplies, or equipment shall be used to support or defeat a parcel tax 
ballot measure.  The Superintendent or designee may use district resources to provide students, 
parents/guardians, and community members with fair and impartial information related to a parcel 
tax ballot measure, including information about the impact of the parcel tax on the district.  
(Education Code 7054) 
(cf. 1160 - Political Processes) 
(cf. 4119.25/4219.25/4319.25 - Political Activities of Employees) 
 
Upon approval of the tax by two-thirds of the votes, the district may levy the tax or contract with 
the county to collect the tax on the district's behalf.  (Government Code 50077) 
 
Exemptions 
 
The Board may grant an exemption from the parcel tax for any or all of the following:  
(Government Code 50079) 
 
1. Persons who are 65 years of age or older 
 
2. Persons receiving Supplemental Security Income for a disability, regardless of age 
 
3. Persons receiving Social Security Disability Insurance benefits, regardless of age, whose 

yearly income does not exceed 250 percent of the 2012 federal poverty guideline issued by 
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

 
Any exemption granted by the Board shall remain in effect until the taxpayer becomes ineligible. 
If the taxpayer becomes ineligible for the exemption for any reason, a new exemption may be 
granted in the same manner.  (Government Code 50079) 
 
If the district provides for an exemption from the parcel tax and contracts or enters into an 
agreement with the county to collect such tax, the district shall annually provide to the tax collector 
a phone number where requests for exemption information may be directed and the link, if 
available, to the location on the district's web site that contains exemption information and the 
application for exemption.  (Government Code 50079) 
 



3 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
7054  Prohibition against use of district property for campaigning; informational only 
ELECTIONS CODE 
324  General election, definition 
328  Local election, definition 
341  Primary election, definition 
348  Regular election, definition 
356  Special election, definition 
357  Statewide election, definition 
1302  Local election to select governing board members 
15372  Elections official certificate statement of election results 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
50075-50077.5  Voter-approved special taxes 
50079  Qualified special taxes of school district 
53724  Board resolution for special tax 
54952  Definition of legislative body, Brown Act 
REVENUE AND TAXATION CODE 
2611.6  County tax bill special tax information 
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 
Article 13A  Taxation 
COURT DECISIONS 
Borikas v. Alameda Unified School District (2013) 214 Cal.App.4th 135 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
The Impact of Pension Cost Increases on California Schools, January 2018 
Behind the Numbers: The Cold, Hard Facts of California Public School Funding, January 2018 
California Education Funding: Students Deserve Better, Fact Sheet, August 2017 
California's Challenge:  Adequately Funding Education in the 21st Century, December 2015 
Legal Guidelines: Use of Public Resources for Ballot Measures and Candidates, Fact Sheet, February 2011 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services: https://www.hhs.gov 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 14, 2020 



1 
**Revisions** - reviewed and revised by Adrienne Garza 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Business and Noninstructional Operations 
BP 3551 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND 
 

Note:  The following policy may be revised to reflect district practice. Pursuant to U.S. Department of Agriculture 
(USDA) Memorandum SP 46-2016, districts participating in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program 
(42 USC 1751-1769j, 1773) are mandated to adopt policy addressing meal charges, including delinquent meal 
charges; see the section "Meal Sales" below and the accompanying administrative regulation. 
 
Pursuant to 7 CFR 210.9, 210.14, and 220.7, districts participating in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast 
program must maintain a nonprofit school food service program. Revenues received through the program may be 
used for the operation or improvement of the food service program, but not to purchase land or buildings unless 
otherwise approved by USDA's Food and Nutrition Services, or to construct buildings. Authorized expenditures 
are specified in Education Code 38101 and defined in the California Department of Education's (CDE) California 
School Accounting Manual. 

 
The Governing Board intends that school food services shall be a self-supporting, nonprofit 
program. To ensure program quality and increase cost effectiveness, the Superintendent or 
designee shall centralize and direct the purchasing of foods and supplies, the planning of menus, 
and the auditing of all food service accounts for the district. 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases) 
(cf. 3311 - Bids) 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
 

Note:  The following paragraph is for use by districts that participate in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast 
Program and may be adapted for use by other districts. Pursuant to 42 USC 1776 and 7 CFR 210.30, USDA has 
established minimum professional standards for food service directors and granted CDE the authority to adopt 
more flexible standards for districts with average daily attendance of less than 2,500. See CDE's Nutrition Services 
Division Management Bulletin 10-2019 for information about state hiring standards. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that food service director(s) possess the qualifications 
required by 7 CFR 210.30 and California Department of Education (CDE) standards. 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 

Note:  The following paragraph is for use by districts participating in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast 
Program. Pursuant to 42 USC 1776, such districts must ensure that food service personnel and other appropriate 
personnel who conduct or oversee administrative procedures receive training on administrative practices (i.e., 
training in application, certification, verification, meal counting, and meal claiming procedures) at least once each 
year.  In addition, all food service personnel are required to receive annual training that is designed to improve the 
accuracy of approvals for free and reduced-price meals and the identification of reimbursable meals at the point of 
service and to ensure program compliance and integrity. Food service personnel must obtain certification on an 
annual basis to demonstrate competence in the training. In addition, training is required to include modules on 
nutrition, health and food safety standards and methodologies, and any other appropriate topics as determined by 
the U.S. Secretary of Agriculture.  CDE provides online training that meets these requirements; see CDE's web 
site. 

 



2 

At least once each year, food service administrators, other appropriate personnel who conduct or 
oversee administrative procedures, and other food service personnel shall receive training provided 
by the CDE.  (42 USC 1776) 
 
Meal Sales 
 

Note:  The following section may be revised by districts that have one or more high-poverty schools that operate 
under the federal universal meal service provision (42 USC 1759a), which provides breakfast and/or lunch free of 
charge to all students at the school. For further information, see BP 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals. 

 
Meals may be sold to students, district employees, Board members, and employees or members of 
the fund or association maintaining the cafeteria.  (Education Code 38082) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 38082, the Governing Board may adopt a resolution to authorize serving meals 
to additional persons other than those listed above. CDE's Nutrition Services Division Management Bulletin 00-
111 states that the Board's policy or resolution must specify the means for serving those persons and indicates that 
using funds from the National School Lunch or Breakfast Program to serve any nonstudent would be contrary to 
program goals. The following optional paragraph is for districts that have adopted such a resolution and should 
be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
In addition, meals may be sold to nonstudents, including parents/guardians, volunteers, students' 
siblings, or other individuals, who are on campus for a legitimate purpose. Any meals served to 
nonstudents shall not be subsidized by federal or state reimbursements, food service revenues, or 
U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) foods. 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 38084, the district may determine meal prices consistent with the goal of paying 
the costs of maintaining the cafeterias (exclusive of the costs of housing and equipping cafeterias or other costs 
determined by Board resolution, which are paid from district funds other than the cafeteria fund, pursuant to 
Education Code 38100). 
 
Students who meet federal eligibility criteria for the reduced-price meal program cannot be charged more than the 
amounts listed in 42 USC 1758 and 1773; see AR 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals.  For information about 
setting prices for full-price meals, see 42 USC 1760 and CDE's Nutrition Services Division Management Bulletin 
SNP 11-2019. 

 
Meal prices, as recommended by the Superintendent or designee and approved by the Board, shall 
be based on the costs of providing food services and consistent with Education Code 38084 and 
42 USC 1760. Students who are enrolled in the free or reduced-price meal program shall receive 
meals free of charge or at a reduced price in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative 
regulation. 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to USDA Memorandum SP 46-2016, districts participating in the National School Lunch and/or 
Breakfast Program are mandated to have a written and clearly communicated meal charge policy which includes, 
but is not limited to, policy on the collection of delinquent meal charge debt. See the accompanying administrative 
regulation for additional language fulfilling this mandate. 

The Superintendent or designee shall establish strategies and procedures for the collection of meal 
payments, including delinquent meal payments. Such procedures shall conform with BP/AR 3553 
- Free and Reduced Price Meals, 2 CFR 200.426, and any applicable CDE guidance. The 
Superintendent or designee shall clearly communicate these procedures to students and 
parents/guardians, and shall make this policy and the accompanying administrative regulation 
available to the public pursuant to Education Code 49557.5. 



3 

 
Note:  Education Code 49557.5 requires any district that participates in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast 
Program to ensure that students whose parents/guardians have unpaid meal fees are not shamed or treated 
differently than other students. As amended by SB 265 (Ch. 785, Statutes of 2019), Education Code 49557.5 
provides that students with unpaid meal fees must not be denied a reimbursable meal of their choice, eliminating 
the possibility that a school could provide an alternative meal to a student with unpaid meal fees. For further 
information about unpaid meal charges, see CDE's Nutrition Services Division Management Bulletin SNP-03-
2017. 
 
In addition, Education Code 49557 requires the Board to approve a plan that ensures students eligible to receive 
free or reduced-price meals are not treated differently from other students, including, but not limited to, assurance 
that eligible students will not be overtly identified by the use of special tokens, tickets, or any other means. For 
additional language addressing this requirement, see BP/AR 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a student whose parent/guardian has unpaid 
school meal fees or a student who is enrolled in the free or reduced-price meal program is not 
overtly identified by the use of special tokens, tickets, or other means and is not shamed, treated 
differently, or serveddenied a meal that differs fromof the meal served to other studentsstudent's 
choice.  (Education Code 49557, 49557.5) 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 0415 - Equity) 
 
Cafeteria Fund 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 38090, money received for the sale of food or for any services performed by 
the cafeterias may be paid into the county treasury to the credit of a "cafeteria fund" for the district. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish a cafeteria fund independent of the district's general 
fund. 
 

Note:  Education Code 38103 allows the Board, at its discretion and with the approval of the County 
Superintendent of Schools who is responsible for a countywide payroll/retirement system under Education Code 
42646, to have wages, salaries, and benefits of food service employees paid either from the district's general fund 
(Option 1 below) or from the district's cafeteria fund (Option 2). 

 
The wages, salaries, and benefits of food service employees shall be paid from the cafeteria fund.  
(Education Code 38103) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix VII 
and USDA guidance, Indirect Costs:  Guidance for State Agencies and School Food Authorities, provide 
information regarding allowable indirect costs that may be charged to the nonprofit school food service account.  
Also see the accompanying administrative regulation. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that state and federal funds provided through school 
meal programs are allocated only for purposes related to the operation or improvement of food 
services and reasonable and necessary indirect program costs as allowed by law. 
(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds) 
(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts) 
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 
 
 
 
 



4 

Contracts with Outside Services 
 

Note:  The following section is optional. Pursuant to Education Code 45103.5, the district is authorized to contract 
for consulting services related to food service management. 42 USC 1758, 7 CFR 210.16, and Education Code 
45103.5 authorize a district, under specified conditions and with approval of CDE, to contract with a food service 
management company to manage its food service operation in one or more of its schools.  See the accompanying 
administrative regulation for related requirements. 

 
With Board approval, the district may enter into a contract for food service consulting services or 
management services in one or more district schools.  (Education Code 45103.5; 42 USC 1758; 7 
CFR 210.16) 
(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 
(cf. 3600 - Consultants) 
 
Procurement of Foods, Equipment and Supplies 
 

Note:  The following two paragraphs reflect requirements for districts participating in the National School Lunch 
and/or Breakfast Program. Pursuant to 7 CFR 210.21, districts are required to comply with all requirements for 
purchasing commercial food products served in the school meal programs, including those outlined in the Buy 
American provision. USDA Memorandum SP 38-2017 clarifies that a district participating in the National School 
Lunch and/or Breakfast Program or any entity purchasing food on its behalf must, to the maximum extent 
practicable, purchase domestically grown and processed foods, as defined. According to the Memorandum, a 
domestic commodity or product is deemed to be "substantially using" domestic agricultural commodities when 
over 51 percent of the final processed product consists of agricultural commodities produced in the United States. 
 
Limited exceptions to the Buy American requirement are described in USDA Memorandum SP 38-2017. If the 
district is using one of these exceptions, it must maintain documentation justifying the exception(s). 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 49563, CDE is required to make resources, requirements, and best practices related 
to the Buy American provision available on its web site and to provide districts with related USDA guidance or 
regulations as updates are issued. 

 
To the maximum extent practicable, foods purchased for use in school meals by the district or by 
any entity purchasing food on its behalf shall be domestic commodities or products. Domestic 
commodity or product means an agricultural commodity that is produced in the United States and 
a food product that is processed in the United States substantially using agricultural commodities 
that are produced in the United States.  (42 USC 1760; 7 CFR 210.21) 
 
A nondomestic food product may be purchased for use in the district's food service program only 
as a last resort when the product is not produced or manufactured in the United States in sufficient 
and reasonablereasonably available quantities of a satisfactory quality, or when competitive bids 
reveal the costs of a United States product are significantly higher than the nondomestic product. 
In such cases, the Superintendent or designee shall retain documentation justifying the use of the 
exception. 
 
Furthermore, the district shall accept a bid or price for an agricultural product grown in California 
before accepting a bid or price for an agricultural product grown outside the state, if the quality of 
the California-grown product is comparable and the bid or price does not exceed the lowest bid or 
price of a product produced outside the state.  (Food and Agriculture Code 58595) 
 
 



5 

Note:  Pursuant to Public Contract Code 20111, districts participating in a federally funded child nutrition program, 
such as the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program, must comply with the federal procurement standards 
of 2 CFR 200.318-200.326 in regard to bid solicitations and awards. Also see BP/AR 3230 - Federal Grant Funds. 
Districts that do not participate in such a program may revise the following paragraph. 

 
Bid solicitations and awards for purchases of equipment, materials, or supplies in support of the 
district's child nutrition program, or for contracts awarded pursuant to Public Contract Code 2000, 
shall be consistent with the federal procurement standards in 2 CFR 200.318-200.326. Awards 
shall be let to the most responsive and responsible party. Price shall be the primary consideration, 
but not the only determining factor, in making such an award.  (Public Contract Code 20111) 
 
Program Monitoring and Evaluation 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board, at least annually, financial reports 
regarding revenues and expenditures related to the food service program. 
 

Note:  The following paragraph is for use by districts that have one or more schools participating in the National 
School Lunch Program, School Breakfast Program, Seamless Summer Feeding Option, and/or other federal meal 
program.  The state monitoring process (the Administrative Review) includes a review of district compliance with 
requirements for federal meal programs, including a review of resource management in the food service program 
as provided in the following paragraph. Each district is reviewed at least once every three years except that, for 
school years from 2017-2019 through 2021-22, the three-year review cycle was extended to a five-year cycle 
pursuant to a waiver submitted by CDE's Nutrition Services Division to USDA. See CDE's nutrition services web 
site for a current list of documents that may be requested for the review. 
 
During the Administrative Review, CDE will review district policies on unpaid meal charges, unpaid meal debt, 
the prohibition against shaming of students whose families cannot pay for a meal or who have unpaid meal debt, 
and processes for notifying parents/guardians of these policies at the beginning of the school year and when a 
student enrolls during the school year. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide all necessary documentation required for the 
Administrative Review conducted by the CDE to ensure compliance of the district's food service 
program with federal requirements related to maintenance of the nonprofit school food service 
account, meal charges, paid lunch equity, revenue from nonprogram goods, indirect costs, and 
USDA foods. 
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
38080-38086.1  Cafeteria, establishment and use 
38090-38095  Cafeterias, funds and accounts 
38100-38103  Cafeterias, allocation of charges 
42646  Alternate payroll procedure 
45103.5  Contracts for management consulting services; restrictions 
49490-49493  School breakfast and lunch programs 
49500-49505  School meals 
49550-49564.5  Meals for needy students, especially: 
49550.5  Universal breakfast 
49554  Contract for services 
49580-49581  Food recovery program 
FOOD AND AGRICULTURE CODE 
58595  Preference for California-grown agricultural products 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
113700-114437  California Retail Food Code 
PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE 
2000-2002  Responsive bidders 



6 

20111  Contracts 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
15550-15565  School lunch and breakfast programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
1751-1769j  School lunch programs 
1771-17911793  Child nutrition, including: 
1773  School breakfast program 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
200.56  Indirect costs, definition 
200.317-200.326  Procurement standards 
200.400-200.475  Cost principles 
200 Appendix VII  Indirect cost proposals 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 
210.1-210.31 33 National School Lunch Program 
220.1-220.2122  National School Breakfast Program 
245.8  Nondiscrimination practices for students eligible for free and reduced price meals and free milk 
250.1-250.70  USDA foods 

Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
California School Accounting Manual 
Food Distribution Program Administrative Manual  
Paid Lunch Equity Requirement and Calculation Tool-Updated Guidance for School Year 2019-20, NSD Management 
Bulletin, SNP-11-2019, May 2019 
Professional Standards in the SNP and New Hiring Flexibility, NSD Management Bulletin, SNP-10-2019, April 2019 
Paid Lunch Equity RequirementSenate Bill 250: Child Hunger Prevention and Calculation ToolFair Treatment Act of 
2017 and USDA Meal Charge Policy Requirements, NSD Management Bulletin, SNP-1205-2018, MayJanuary 2018 
Clarification for the Use of Alternate Meals in the National School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs, and 
Additional Guidance on the Handling of Unpaid Meal Charges, NSD Management Bulletin, SNP-03-2018, February 
2018 
Storage and Inventory Management of U.S. Department of Agriculture Foods, NSD Management Bulletin, FDP-01-
2018, January 2018 
Unpaid Meal Charges:  Local Meal Charge Policies, Clarification on Collection of Delinquent Meal Payments, and 
Excess Student Account Balances, NSD Management Bulletin, SNP-03-2017, April 2017 
Procuring and Monitoring of Food Service Management Contracts, NSD Management Bulletin, SNP-13-2015, January 
2015 
Cafeteria Funds--Allowable Uses, NSD Management Bulletin, NSD-SNP-07-2013, May 2013 
Adult and Sibling Meals in the National School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs, NSD Management Bulletin, 00-
111, July 2000 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 
FAQs About School Meals - FAQs 
Compliance with and Enforcement of the Buy American Provision in the National School Lunch Program, SP 38-2017, 
June 2017 
Overcoming the Unpaid Meal Challenge:  Proven Strategies from Our Nation's Schools, SP 29-2017, May 2017 
Unpaid Meal Charges:  Guidance and Q&A, SP 23-2017, March 2017 
Indirect Costs:  Guidance for State Agencies and School Food Authorities SP 60-2016, September 2016 
Unpaid Meal Charges:  Local Meal Charge Policies, SP 46-2016, July 2016 
Discretionary Elimination of Reduced Price Charges in the School Meal Programs, SP 17-2014, January 2014 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu 
California School Nutrition Association:  http://www.calsna.org 
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service:  http://www.fns.usda.gov/cnd 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007  
revised: June 14, 2011  
revised: February 11, 2014 
revised: August 8, 2017 
revised: May 8, 2018 
revised: August 13, 2019 
revised: April 14, 2020 



1 
**Revisions** - reviewed and revised by Adrienne Garza 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Business and Noninstructional Operations 
AR 3551 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND 
 

Note:  Districts that provide breakfast and/or lunch free of charge to all students (i.e., "universal meal service") at 
one or more schools pursuant to 42 USC 1759a or Education Code 49550.5 should revise the following 
administrative regulation accordingly. Also see BP/AR 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals. 

 
Payments for Meals 
 

Note:  State and federal law (Education Code 49550, 49557; 42 USC 1758, 1773; 7 CFR 245.8) require that all 
students eligible for free and reduced-price meals receive a reimbursable meal during each school day, which must 
be the same meal choice offered to noneligible students; see BP/AR 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals. Districts 
therefore cannot serve an alternate meal (i.e., a meal that is different than the day's advertised meal) to a student 
eligible for reduced-price meals who does not have the ability to pay or who fails to provide a meal ticket or other 
medium of exchange on a given day. 
 
In addition to providing meals at no cost to students who are eligible, the district may offer meals at no cost to 
students who qualify for reduced-price benefits. Districts that choose to eliminate reduced-price meal charges may 
still claim the meals at the reduced-price rate, but the cost difference between the reduced-price meal and the no-
cost meal must be covered by the district's cafeteria fund.  For more information, see the U.S. Department of 
Agriculture's (USDA) Memorandum SP 17-2014. 
 
The following section includes recommendations of the California Department of Education's (CDE) Nutrition 
Services Division Management Bulletin and the USDA's "School Meals - FAQs" on the USDA's web site and may 
be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
With the exception of students who are eligible to receive meals at no cost, students may pay on a 
per-meal basis or may submit payments in advance. The Superintendent or designee shall maintain 
a system for accurately recording payments received and tracking meals provided to each student. 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 
 

Note:  Districts should, at a minimum, inform parents/guardians at the beginning of the school year and on an 
ongoing basis of district practices for students who have lost or forgotten their meal payment. In addition, districts 
should set up a system for notifying parents/guardians when a student's meal payment account has a low or negative 
balance. 
 
According to USDA's Memorandum SP-23-2017, the district's policy on delinquent meal payments must be 
communicated in writing to all households at the start of each school year and to households transferring to the 
school during the school year. CDE's Nutrition Services Division Management Bulletin SNP-03-2017 states that, 
at a minimum, districts should use the methods specified below to communicate the district's meal policy. 

 
At the beginning of the school year, and whenever a student enrolls during the school year, 
parents/guardians shall be notified of the district's meal payment policies and be encouraged to 
prepay for meals whenever possible. The Superintendent or designee shall communicate the 
district's meal payment policies through multiple methods, including, but not limited to: 



2 

 
1. Explaining the meal charge policy within registration materials provided to 

parents/guardians at the start of the school year 
 
2. Including the policy in print versions of student handbooks, if provided to 

parents/guardians annually 
 
3. Providing the policy whenever parents/guardians are notified regarding the application 

process for free and reduced-price meals, such as in the distribution of applications at the 
start of the school year 

 
4. Posting the policy on the district's web site 
 
5. Establishing a system to notify parents/guardians when a student's meal payment account 

has a low or negative balance 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

 
In order to avoid potential misuse of a student's food service account by someone other than the 
student in whose name the account has been established, the Superintendent or designee shall 
verify a student's identity when setting up the account and when charging any meal to the account. 
The Superintendent or designee shall investigate any claim that a bill does not belong to a student 
or is inaccurate, and shall open a new account as appropriate for a student whose account appears 
to have been misused. 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to CDE's Nutrition Services Division Management Bulletin SNP-03-2017, districts must ensure 
that students who are approved for reduced-price meals receive all meals that are paid for. Any excess payments 
must be either carried over or refunded to the parents/guardians. The following paragraph extends this provision 
to also apply to students paying for full-price meals. 

 
Any payments made to a student's food service account shall, if not used within the school year, 
be carried over into the next school year or be refunded to the student's parents/guardians. 
 
Unpaid and Delinquent Meal Charges 
 

Note:  The following section reflects requirements applicable to districts participating in the National School Lunch 
and/or Breakfast Program and may also be used by districts that do not participate in the program. Pursuant to 
USDA Memorandum SP 46-2016, districts participating in the National School Lunch and/or Breakfast Program 
are mandated to have a written and clearly communicated meal charge policy which includes, but is not limited 
to, policy on the collection of delinquent meal charge debt. Such policy may be consistent for all students or vary 
by grade level. The following section may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
The district shall not direct any action toward a student to collect unpaid school meal fees.  
(Education Code 49557.5) 
 
Students who have unpaid meal charges shall be served a meal of their choice throughout the 
school year regardless of the level of debt incurred by the household. Such students shall not be 
overtly identified by the use of special tokens, tickets, or other means and shall not be shamed, 
treated differently, or denied a meal of their choice.  (Education Code 49557, 49557.5) 



3 

 
Note:  Education Code 49557.5 requires that parents/guardians be notified no later than 10 days after a student's 
school meal account has reached a negative balance. At its discretion, the district may choose to also notify 
parents/guardians before the student's meal account reaches a negative balance. The following paragraph may be 
modified to reflect district practice. 

 
No later than 10 days after a student's school meal account has reached a negative balance, the 
Superintendent or designee shall so notify the student's parent/guardian. Before sending this 
notification, the district shall exhaust all options and methods to directly certify the student for free 
or reduced-price meals. If the district is not able to directly certify the student, the notice to the 
parent/guardian shall include a paper copy of, or an electronic link to, an application for free or 
reduced-price meals and the Superintendent or designee shall contact the parent/guardian to 
encourage submission of the application.  (Education Code 49557.5) 
 
The district may attempt to collect unpaid school meal fees from a parent/guardian, but shall not 
use a debt collector.  (Education Code 49557.5) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph reflects CDE guidance in its Nutrition Services Division Management 
Bulletin SNP-03-2017. 

 
The Superintendent or designee may enter into an agreement with a student's parent/guardian for 
payment of the student's unpaid meal charge balance over a period of time. As necessary, the 
repayment plan may allow the unrecovered or delinquent debt to carry over into the next fiscal 
year. 
 

Note:  CDE's Nutrition Services Division Management Bulletin SNP-03-2017 requires that the district's unpaid 
meal policy conform with the cost principles set forth in 2 CFR 200.426, as provided below. 

 
The district shall not direct any action toward a student to collect unpaid school meal fees.  
(Education Code 49557.5) 
 
The district's efforts to collect debt shall be consistent with district policies and procedures, 
California Department of Education (CDE) guidance, and 2 CFR 200.426. The district shall not 
spend more than the actual debt owed in efforts to recover unpaid meal charges. 
 

Note:  Pursuant to CDE's Nutrition Services Division Management Bulletin SNP-03-2017, delinquent debt must 
be reclassified as bad debt and written off as an operating loss if it is not paid by the end of the fiscal year in which 
the debt was incurred, unless the district enters into a repayment plan with the parent/guardian prior to the end of 
the fiscal year or the debt occurs fewer than 90 days prior to the end of the fiscal year. Federal funds are not 
available to reimburse the district for bad debt. Districts are required to maintain related records in accordance 
with 7 CFR 210.9 and 210.15. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of the efforts made to collect unpaid meal 
charges and, if applicable, financial documentation showing when the unpaid meal balance has 
become an operating loss. 
 
Reimbursement Claims 
 

Note:  To streamline administration of state and federal meal programs, CDE has developed an online Child 
Nutrition Information and Payment System which must be used to submit reimbursement claims and to submit 
and track the status of applications and USDA food requests. 

 



4 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of the number of meals served each day by 
school site and by category of free, reduced-price, and full-price meals.  The Superintendent or 
designee shall submit reimbursement claims for school meals to CDE using the online Child 
Nutrition Information and Payment System. 
 
Donation of Leftover Food 
 
To minimize waste and reduce food insecurity, the district may provide sharing tables where 
students and staff may return appropriate unused cafeteria food items to be made available to 
students during the course of a regular school meal time.  If food on the sharing tables is not taken 
by a student, the school cafeteria may donate the food to a food bank or any other nonprofit 
charitable organization.  (Health and Safety Code 114079) 
(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations) 
 
Food that may be donated includes prepackaged, nonpotentially hazardous food with the 
packaging still intact and in good condition, whole uncut produce that complies with Health and 
Safety Code 113992, unopened bags of sliced fruit, unopened containers of milk that are 
immediately stored in a cooling bin maintained at 41 degrees Fahrenheit or below, and perishable 
prepackaged food if it is placed in a proper temperature-controlled environment. The preparation, 
safety, and donation of food shall be consistent with Health and Safety Code 113980.  (Health and 
Safety Code 114079) 
 
Cafeteria Fund 
 

Note:  Education Code 38093 authorizes the Governing Board to establish one or more cafeteria revolving accounts 
to be treated as revolving cash accounts of the cafeteria fund. 

 
All proceeds from food sales and other services offered by the cafeteria shall be deposited in the 
cafeteria fund as provided by law. The income and expenditures of any cafeteria revolving account 
established by the Board of Education shall be recorded as income and expenditures of the cafeteria 
fund.  (Education Code 38090, 38093) 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases) 
 

Note:  Education Code 38101 permits a district, with approval from CDE, to utilize cafeteria funds to pay for the 
purchase of a mobile food facility. However, if the district uses federal reimbursements from any of the federal 
child nutrition programs for such purchase, the mobile food facility shall only be used to support the administration 
of those federal programs. Mobile food facilities used for any purposes other than to support the administration of 
federal child nutrition programs shall not be purchased with cafeteria funds. 

 
The cafeteria fund shall be used only for those expenditures authorized by the Board as necessary 
for the operation of school cafeterias in accordance with Education Code 38100-38103, 2 CFR 
Part 200 Appendix VII, and the California School Accounting Manual. 
 
Any charges to, or transfers from, a food service program shall be dated and accompanied by a 
written explanation of the expenditure's purpose of and basis for the expenditure.  (Education Code 
38101) 
(cf. 3110 - Transfer of Funds) 
 
 



5 

Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix VII 
and USDA guidance SP 60-2016, Indirect Costs: Guidance for State Agencies and School Food Authorities, 
provide information regarding allowable indirect costs that may be charged to the nonprofit school food service 
account. Indirect costs are those that are incurred for the benefit of multiple programs or objectives and typically 
support administrative overhead functions (e.g., accounting, payroll, purchasing, utilities, janitorial services). Each 
program or objective that benefits from the indirect cost bears a commensurate portion of the cost.  Costs may be 
charged to the nonprofit food service account only if properly documented. 

 
Indirect costs charged to the food service program shall be based on either the district's prior year 
indirect cost rate as approved by CDE or the statewide average approved indirect cost rate for the 
second prior fiscal year, whichever is less.  (Education Code 38101) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to 7 CFR 210.14 and 220.7, net cash resources (i.e., all monies that have accrued to the nonprofit 
school food service at any given time, less cash payable) should not exceed three months' average expenditures. If 
there is a surplus, then according to USDA guidance, Indirect Costs:  Guidance for State Agencies and School 
Food Authorities, the district must lower the price of paid lunches, improve food quality, or make other 
improvements to school meal operations. CDE's Nutrition Services Division Management Bulletin NSD-SNP-07-
2013 provides that CDE may approve a district's net cash resources in an amount greater than three months' average 
expenditures if the district has a spending plan for the excess funds in place with the Nutrition Services Division. 

 
Net cash resources in the nonprofit school food service shall not exceed three monthsmonths' 
average expenditures.  (7 CFR 210.14, 220.7) 
 
U.S. Department of Agriculture Foods 
 
Note:  The following optional section is for use by districts that participate in the National School Lunch Program 
and receive foods from USDA pursuant to 42 USC 1755 and 7 CFR 250.1-250.70.  CDE is responsible for ordering 
and distributing USDA foods for use in California schools. 

 
The district shall provide facilities for the storage and control of foods received through the U.S. 
Department of Agriculture (USDA) that protect against theft, spoilage, damage, or other loss.  
Such storage facilities shall maintain donated foods in sanitary conditions, at the proper 
temperature and humidity, and with adequate air circulation.  The district shall comply with all 
federal, state, or local requirements related to food safety and health and procedures for responding 
to a food recall, as applicable, and shall obtain all required health inspections.  (7 CFR 250.14) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain inventories of USDA foods in accordance with 7 
CFR 250.59 and CDE procedures, and shall ensure that foods are used before their expiration 
dates. 
 
USDA donated foods shall be used in school lunches as far as practicable.  USDA foods also may 
be used in other nonprofit food service activities, including, but not limited to, school breakfasts 
or other meals, a la carte foods sold to students, meals served to adults directly involved in the 
operation and administration of the food service and to other school staff, and training in nutrition, 
health, food service, or general home economics instruction for students, provided that any 
revenues from such activities accrue to the district's nonprofit food service account.  (7 CFR 
250.59) 
 
 
 
 



6 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007  
revised: June 14, 2011  
revised: February 11, 2014 
revised: August 8, 2017 
revised: May 8, 2018 
revised: August 13, 2019 
revised: April 14, 2020 
 


